
Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         May 4, 2020 
 

Russell County Page 1 
 

  
RUSSELL COUNTY 

 
BOARD OF SUPERVISOR’S MEETING 

 
AGENDA – MAY 4, 2020 

 
Board Room                Regular Meeting               5:00 PM 

 
Russell County Governmental Center 

Lebanon, Virginia 24266 
 

 
 

 
The Russell County Board of Supervisors Meetings will be held pursuit to the Russell County Emergency 
Ordinance of April 6, 2020 to allow for the Continuity of Government Operations During the Pandemic, including Altering 
the Process for Conducting Public Meetings; Restricting the Use of Public Buildings or Facilities; Providing Additional Powers 
to the Director of Emergency Management to Incur Costs, Waive Procedures, and Take Other Temporary Actions; and 
Suspending Deadlines and Procedures.  
 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER – Clerk of the Board 
 
ROLL CALL – Clerk of the Board 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION (CLOSED) – Legal & Personnel Matters  
(SCHEDULED ONE HOUR BEFORE REGULAR BOS MEETING - - REGULAR BOS MEETING BEGINS AT 6 P.M.) 
 
INVOCATION – Chairperson  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 

1. Russell County Fiscal-Year 2020/2021 Budget Public Hearing 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

1.  Approval of Minutes.  Consider approval of the minutes of the  
 following meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors………………A-1 



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         May 4, 2020 
 

Russell County Page 2 
 

 
a. Unapproved minutes of April 6, 2020 
b. Unapproved minutes of April 28, 2020          

  
2. Approval of Expenditures. Consider approval of expenditures presented  

for payment……………………………………………………………………………...A-2 
 
CITIZEN’S COMMENT PERIOD 
 

• Russell County Residents can participate in citizen’s comment by phone.                   
(Limited to 3 minutes).  
 
United States: +1 (872) 240-3212  
Access Code: 837-470-693# 
 

• Board of Supervisor’s Lobby. 
Due to Coronavirus (COVID-19) - Citizen Comment Period will be guided by Executive Order Fifty-Three 
Restrictions issued on March 23, 2020 concerning community spread and person-to-person interactions 
will be limited to the Ten (10) Person Only Ban though Video/Audio/ Electronic Methods and limited to 3 
minutes per person. 

 
CONSTITUTIONAL OFFICER REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 
COUNTY ATTORNEY REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 

1. Continuity of Government Emergency Ordinance………………………………...B-1  
 

2. Courthouse Project Management Services Contract...…………………………...B-2 
 

3. CPWMA User Agreement……………………………………………………………….B-3   
 

4. Personnel Policy Update……………………………………………………………….B-4 
 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 

REPORTS 
 
1. RC Landfill 258 & 515 Groundwater/Gas Closures………………………………..C-1 
 
REQUESTS 

  
1. CDBG Planning Grant – Cleveland Sewer Treatment Plant Upgrade…….……C-2 

 
2. VT CDAC Letter of Confirmation for U.S. Environmental Protection  

Agency’s (EPA) Brownfields Assessment Grant…………………………………..C-3 
 

3. Russell County Sheriff & Washington County Sheriff Mutual Aid and                        
Cooperation Agreement for Law Enforcement Services (2020-2023)………….C-4 



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         May 4, 2020 
 

Russell County Page 3 
 

 
4. Russell County Sheriff & Buchanan County Sheriff Mutual Aid and                        

Cooperation Agreement for Law Enforcement Services (2020-2023)………….C-5 
 

5. CPRHA Five-Year Action Plan & Annual Environmental Review Plan………...C-6 
 

6. Lebanon Elementary School Wall Repair Contract .………………………………C-7 
 

7. Honaker School Property Transfer Public Hearing………………………………..C-8 
 

MATTERS PRESENTED BY THE BOARD 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
COUNTY AGENCY / BOARD REPORTS: 
        

• Treasurer’s Report ………………………………………………………………………D 
• RC IDA …………………………………………………………………………………….E 
• RC PSA …………………………………………………………………………………... F 
• RC Tourism……………………………………………………………………………….G 
• RC Planning Commission ……………………………………………………………..H 
• Conference Center………………………………………………………………………I 
• RC Fitness Center……………………………………………………………………….J 
• RC Transportation & Safety…………………………………………………………...K 
• RC Cannery Reports…………………………………………………………………….L 
• RC Building Inspector…………………………………………………………………..M 
• RC Litter Report………………………………………………………………………….N   

 



CLOSED SESSION 
 

Motion made by , second by and duly approved by the 
Board of Supervisors enter into closed session to discuss Legal Matters pursuant to 
Section 2.2-3711(A) (1), (7), (8). 

The vote was: 
Aye:     
Nay:     

CERTIFICATION OF CLOSED SESSION 
 
Pursuant to §2.2-3712 (D) of the Code of Virginia 1950, as amended, each member of the 
Board of Supervisors upon the Roll Call certifies that to the best of their knowledge (i) only 
public business matters lawfully exempted from the open meeting requirements under the 
Virginia Freedom of Information Act and (ii) only such public business matters that were 
identified in the motion(s) by which the closed meeting was convened were heard, 
discussed or considered in the meeting by the Board of Supervisors. 

Any member of the Board of Supervisors who believes that there was a departure from the 
requirements of clauses (i) and (ii) above shall so state prior to the vote, indicating the 
substance of the departure that, in his or her judgment, has taken place. 

Are there any Supervisors who believe a departure has taken place? 

Seeing none, if you agree that the matters heard, discussed or considered during the 
closed meeting were pursuant only to the motion(s) by which the closed meeting was 
convened, please signify by saying aye or yes. 

Tim Lovelace - 

Lou Ann Wallace - 

Carl Rhea - 

Steve Breeding - 

David Eaton - 

Rebecca Dye - 

Oris Christian - 

APPROVAL TO RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION 

Motion made by , second by and duly approved by 
the Board of Supervisors to return to regular session. 

The vote was: 
Aye:     
Nay:     



                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
   Board of Supervisors                      Action Item 

137 Highland Drive                             Presenters - Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266                    

         Meeting: 5/4/20     6:00 PM 
 

 
Public Hearing  
 
1. Russell County Fiscal-Year 2020/2021 Budget Public Hearing 
 

 
Staff Recommendation: 

 
Board Discretion. 

 
Suggested Motion: 

 
Board Discretion.  

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
• FY 20/21 Proposed County Budget  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
     Board of Supervisors                       Action Item A-1 

137 Highland Drive  Presenter: Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

        Meeting: 5/4/20       6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Approval of Minutes  

Request approval of the minutes from the following meeting: 

• Unapproved minutes of April 6, 2020 
• Unapproved minutes of April 28, 2020 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s): 
Board discretion 

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Motion to approve Board Minutes. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• Board Minutes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



April 06, 2020 

A regular monthly meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors was held on Monday, April 06, 
2020 at 6:00 pm at the Russell County Government Center in Lebanon, Virginia. 

The Clerk called the meeting to order. 

Roll Call by the Clerk: 

Present: 

Tim Lovelace 
Lou Wallace 
Carl Rhea 
David Eaton 
Steve Breeding 
Oris Christian 
Rebecca Dye 
 
Lonzo Lester, Clerk 
Vicki Porter, Deputy Clerk 
Katie Patton, County Attorney 
 
Absent:  None 
 
Invocation by the Chairperson, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 
 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the agenda as presented. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
County Attorney Reports and Requests 
 
The County Attorney asked that the Board to approve an Ordinance to allow for the continuation of 
government during the Corona Virus pandemic. 
 

APPROVAL OF AN ORDINANCE FOR THE CONTINUITY OF GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS 
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve an Ordinance for the Continuity of Government Operations during the Corona Virus pandemic. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 



 
New Business 
 

APPROVAL OF THE MARCH 02, 2020 MINUTES 
 
Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the March 02, 2020 minutes and dispense with the reading thereof. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF THE MARCH 17, 2020 MINUTES 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Lou Wallace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the March 17, 2020 minutes and dispense with the reading thereof. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF GENERAL COUNTY INVOICES 
 
Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve general county invoices in the amount of $586,343.05, including reoccurring and withholdings. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
The Chair opened citizens comment period, hearing none it was closed. 
 
County Administrator Reports and Requests 
 

APPROVAL OF AN ADDITIONAL $24,107.30 FOR THE CSA 
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve an additional allocation of $24,107.30 for the CSA. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay: None 
 

APPROVAL TO INTERVIEW CONTRACTORS FOR THE LEBANON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL PROJECT 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Lou Wallace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
move forward with interviews for the Lebanon Elementary School Project contract. 
 



The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

PUBLIC HEARING TO BE HELD ON THE FY 2020/2021 BUDGET 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Lou Wallace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
hold a public hearing on the FY 2020/2021 Budget on May 04, 2020 at 6:00 pm. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL TO ADJOURN 
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
adjourn. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
 
 
 
 
_________________________                                                            _________________________ 
Clerk of the Board                                                                                  Chairperson 
 
 
 
 
 



April 28, 2020 

 

A special called meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors was held on Tuesday, April 28, 2020 
at 6:00 pm at the Russell County Government Center in Lebanon, Virginia.   

The Clerk called the meeting to order. 

Roll Call by the Clerk: 

Present (GoToMeeting): 

Tim Lovelace 
Lou Wallace 
Carl Rhea 
David Eaton 
Steve Breeding, Vice Chairman  
Rebecca Dye, Chairperson  
Oris Christian  
 
Lonzo Lester, Clerk  
Vicki Porter, Deputy Clerk 
Katie Patton, County Attorney 
 
Absent:   
None 
 
Invocation by Chairperson Rebecca Dye, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 
 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 
Motion made by Lou Wallace, second Oris Christian and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the agenda as presented. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye: Lou Wallace, Oris Christian, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Steve Breeding and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  None 
 
New Business 

APPROVAL OF A 21ST CENTURY GRANT FOR LEBANON HIGH SCHOOL 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a 21st Century After School Program Grant in the amount of $140,500 for Lebanon High School. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
 



 
 

APPROVAL OF A 21ST CENTURY GRANT FOR CASTLEWOOD HIGH SCHOOL 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a 21st Century After School Program Grant in the amount of $139,000 for Castlewood High 
School. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, David Eaton, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL TO ADJOURN 
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Oris Christian and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
adjourn. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Oris Christian, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Steve Breeding 
Nay:  None 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________                                         _____________________________ 
Clerk of the Board                                                                                 Chairperson 
 
 
 
 
 



 
                                                      Board of Supervisors                         Action Item A-2 

137 Highland Drive Presenter: Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

       Meeting: 5/4/20      6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Approval of Expenditures 

Request approval of the County’s April 2020 Monthly Expenditures: 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):  
County’s April 2020 Monthly Expenditures are in compliance with budget and operational 

services. 

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Motion to approve County’s April 2020 Monthly Expenditures. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• April 2020 Monthly Expenditures 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 















                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
    Board of Supervisors   Action Item 

137 Highland Drive                                  Presenters - Attorney 
Lebanon, VA 24266                    

          Meeting: 5/4/20        6:00 PM 
 

 
County Attorney Reports 

 
 

1. Continuity of Government Emergency Ordinance………………………………...B-1  
 

2. Courthouse Project Management Services Contract...…………………………...B-2 
 

3. CPWMA User Agreement……………………………………………………………….B-3   
 

4. Personnel Policy Update……………………………………………………………….B-4 
 

 
Staff Recommendation: 

 
Board Discretion. 

 
Suggested Motion: 

 
Motion Required.  

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
• Various 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Emergency Ordinance to Allow for the Continuity of Government Operations During the 
Pandemic, including Altering the Process for Conducting Public Meetings; Restricting the 
Use of Public Buildings or Facilities; Providing Additional Powers to the Director of 
Emergency Management to Incur Costs, Waive Procedures, and Take Other Temporary 
Actions; and Suspending Deadlines and Procedures  
 

 WHEREAS, on January 31, 2020, the U.S. Secretary of Health and Human Services 
declared a public health emergency in response to the spread of the novel coronavirus (COVID-
19); and 
 
 WHEREAS, on March 12, 2020, the Governor, in Executive Order Fifty-One, declared a 
state of emergency in the Commonwealth of Virginia, acknowledging the spread of COVID-19 as 
a disaster as defined in Virginia Code § 44-146.16; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Executive Order Fifty-One authorized local governments to render 
appropriate assistance and to alleviate conditions, as appropriate, to prepare for and mitigate the 
effects of the virus; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on March 13, 2020, the President of the United States found and declared the 
outbreak of COVID-19 to constitute a national emergency, beginning March 1, 2020; and  
 
 WHEREAS, on March 17 and 23, the Governor requested and then directed Virginians to 
avoid non-essential gatherings of more than 10 people; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Russell County Board of Supervisors held a special called meeting on 
March 17, 2020 Board determined that COVID-19 constituted a “disaster” as contemplated in 
section 15.2-1413 of the Code of Virginia of 1950, as amended and pursuant to Virginia Code § 
44-146.21, declared a local state of emergency in Russell County; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors has determined that COVID-19 constitutes a 
communicable disease of public health threat which has caused a disaster as those terms are 
defined in Virginia Code § 44-146.16; and  
 
 WHEREAS, while the Board of Supervisors values transparency in government and 
public engagement, it also finds that emergency measures are necessary to mitigate the spread of 
COVID-19 and to protect the health, safety, and welfare of residents and employees, while still 
providing for government operations to continue during this state of emergency; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Virginia Code § 15.2-1413 provides that the Board of Supervisors, 
notwithstanding any contrary provision of law, may adopt an ordinance to assure the continuity of 
government operations during this disaster and for up to six months; and. 
 
 WHEREAS, Virginia Code § 44-146.21 further provides that a local director of 
emergency management or any member of a governing body in his absence may upon the 
declaration of a local emergency proceed without regard to time-consuming procedures and 
formalities prescribed by law, except for mandatory constitutional requirements; and  



 
 WHEREAS, Virginia Code § 15.2-1200 provides the county with authority to adopt 
necessary regulations to prevent the spread of contagious diseases among its residents; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors also has the inherent authority to vary the county’s 
policies, procedures, and practices to assure the continuity of government operations; and 
 

WHEREAS, government operations includes the work of the Board of Supervisors and 
other local public bodies, and the personnel who work for or on behalf of local public bodies; and 

 
WHEREAS, Virginia Code § 2.2-3708.2(A)(3) allows, under certain procedural 

requirements including public notice and access, that members of the Board of Superviosrs may 
convene solely by electronic mean “to address the emergency;” And 

 
WHEREAS, the open public meeting requirements of the Virginia Freedom of 

Information Act (“FOIA”) are limited only by a properly claimed exemption provided under that 
Act or “any other statute;” and 

 
WHEREAS, the Attorney General of Virginia issued an opinion dated March 20, 2020 

stating that localities have the authority during disasters to adopt ordinances to ensure the 
continuity of the government; and 

 
WHEREAS, this emergency ordinance in response to the disaster caused by the COVID-

19 pandemic promotes the public health, safety, and welfare, and its adoption is consistent with 
the law of the Commonwealth of Virginia, the Virginia Constitution and the United States 
Constitution. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that this uncodified ordinance is hereby 
enacted as follows: 
 
An Emergency Ordinance Allowing for the Continuity of Government Operations During 
the Pandemic 
 
Sec. 1.  Purpose; Effective Date; Expiration 
 
 This ordinance allows for variances from state laws and county ordinances in order to 
protect the health, safety, and welfare of residents and employees from the spread of COVID-19 
while still providing for government operations to continue during this state of emergency. 
 

The operation of government includes management of all county facilities, management of 
the school system, and the work of all local boards, including the Board of Supervisors, the Russell 
County School Board, the Russell County Industrial Development Authority, the Russell County 
Public Service Authority, the Russell County Department of Social Services, and any other local 
or regional board, commission, committee, or authority created by the board of supervisors or to 
which the board of supervisors appoints or recommends for appointment all or a portion of its 
members (collectively “Public Bodies” and individually “Public Body”), including employees 



who work for or on behalf of any Public Body.  Accordingly, the provisions of this emergency 
ordinance applies to all such “Public Bodies”. 
 

At this time, public health experts recommend against assembling groups of people in 
confined spaces. Accordingly, this ordinance contains modifications for public meetings which 
should be followed while it is deemed unwise or unsafe to gather in one location a quorum for any 
Public Bodies, or to invite members of the public to physically gather together for public meetings.   

 
 Moreover, the spread of COVID-19 may make it impossible or impractical for government 
operations to meet all normally imposed deadlines, regulations, and time frames, or to comport, in 
some instances, with lengthy procedures and processes such as procurement or employment 
processes.  
 
 This emergency ordinance is effective immediately and will remain in effect for 60 days 
unless amended, rescinded, or readopted in conformity with the notice provisions of Virginia Code 
§ 15.2-1427; however, in no event will the ordinance be effective for more than six months from 
the effective date of this ordinance. At the end of the six months, if a state of emergency still exists 
then this ordinance may be renewed the same way it was originally enacted. Upon repeal or 
expiration of this ordinance, normal government operations will resume.  
 
Sec. 2.  Public Meetings and Public Hearings 
 
A. Any regularly scheduled or regular meeting of any Public Body may be canceled by the 
chair if there is no essential business that needs to occur or if conditions otherwise make it 
impractical to meet. Notice of the cancellation must be provided to the Public Body members and 
the public as soon as practicable.   
 
B. In the alternative, any regularly scheduled or regular meeting of any Public Body may  
be held by solely electronic or telephonic means without a quorum of members physically present 
and without members of the public physically present, provided the following occurs: 
 
 1)  Any such electronic meeting of the Public Entities shall be open to electronic 
participation by the public and closed to in-person participation by the public. The meeting is 
accessible to the public through live audio or video on the County’s or Public Body’s website, a 
dial-in telephone number, or a social media platform. 
 
 2) The agenda and public notice for the meeting must: 

a) include a statement that the meeting is being held using electronic means under this 
ordinance; 

b) contain specific information about how members of the public can access the 
meeting; and  

c) if there are any public hearing or public comment items, specifically identify how 
members of the public can provide comment, including one or more of the 
following: by e-mail, in writing, by telephone, through a social media platform, or 
via other electronic means. 
 



 
 3) The agenda is posted on the County’s or Public Body’s website at least three days prior 
to the meeting.  Other materials associated with the meeting, if any, must be made available to the 
public at the same time they are provided to the Public Body members. 
 
 4) For public hearings and any items for which public comment is permitted, the following 
rules apply: 

a) Normal rules of order apply with respect to requiring the name and home address 
of the commenter, that comments relate to the hearing or comment topic, that 
appropriate limits on the number of comments per person per item apply, and that 
comments be of reasonable length. 

b) Public Bodies may allow public comments to be submitted via phone call, e-mail, 
or in writing, up until a reasonable time before the start of the meeting so long as 
those comments are provided to the Public Body members prior to any decision on 
an item.  

c) If available, members of the public may provide comments through leaving a 
voicemail on a dedicated phone number up until a reasonable time before the start 
of the meeting so long as those comments are then provided to the Public Body 
members prior to any decision on an item. 

d) If available, members of the public may provide comments through telephonic or 
interactive electronic means (call-in meeting access, social media platform) during 
the meeting so long as those comments are received by or provided to the Public 
Body members prior to any decision on an item. 

e) The Public Body may choose to receive additional comments through any means 
for a period of time after the public hearing or public meeting, so long as it 
announces and publicizes that opportunity and those comments are provided to the 
Public Body members prior to any decision on an item.  

f) All public comments must be made a part of the record of the Public Body either by 
being summarized in or included with the meeting minutes. 
 

 5) Any votes taken during the meeting must be taken by roll call, individually recording 
each member’s name and vote. 
 
 6) The minutes of any meeting under this ordinance must conform to the requirements of 
law, including identifying the forms of electronic communication used, the members participating 
and the means by which they participated, the opportunities for public access or participation, a 
summary of the public comments, if any, and the actions taken at the meeting. The Public Entities 
may approve minutes of an electronic meeting at a subsequent electronic meeting and shall later 
approve all such minutes at a regular or special meeting after the emergency and disaster has ended. 
 
C. Public Bodies may hold special meetings consistent with the provisions in (B) except that 
notice of the special meeting need only be provided at least three working days prior to the meeting, 
and the agenda and associated materials, if any, need to be made available to the public at the same 
time as they are made available to the Public Body members. 
 
 



 
D. Public Bodies may hold emergency meetings consistent with Virginia Code § 2.2-3708. 
 
E. Any item on an agenda for a regularly scheduled, regular, special, or emergency meeting 
held hereunder may be continued to a later date or time for the purpose of reviewing and 
considering comments from the public. 
 
F. Non-emergency public hearings and action items of Public Bodies may be postponed to a 
date certain provided that public notice is given so that the public are aware of how and when to 
present their views. 
 
G. Nothing in this Emergency Ordinance shall prohibit Public Bodies from holding in-
person public meetings provided that public health and safety measures as well as social 
distancing are taken into consideration. 
 
Sec. 3.  Public Buildings, Facilities, Real Property and Events 
 

The director of emergency management is empowered to restrict members of the public 
from entering or congregating around county-owned buildings, facilities, and real property as is 
reasonably necessary to ensure the health, safety, and welfare of the public or county staff. 
Moreover, the director of emergency management may cancel, postpone, or reschedule any events 
scheduled for any county-owned building, facility or property as necessary to ensure the health, 
safety, and welfare of the public or county staff.  

 
Sec. 4.  Additional powers of director of emergency management 
 
A. Funding and Contracts. To the extent of unobligated funds available in excess of 
appropriations in the approved budget, the director of emergency management may enter into 
contracts and incur obligations necessary to protect the health and safety of persons and property, 
and to provide emergency assistance to persons affected by this disaster. 

 
B. Procedures. The director of emergency management may proceed without regard to time-
consuming procedures and formalities prescribed by law (except mandatory constitutional 
requirements) pertaining to the performance of public work, entering into contracts, incurring 
obligations, employing workers, renting equipment, purchasing supplies and materials, and other 
expenditures of public funds. 

 
C. Other Temporary Actions. The director of emergency management may temporarily take 
any of the following actions: waive or reduce fees imposed by county ordinance; waive 
enforcement, in whole or in part, of any county ordinance; and modify, limit, waive, suspend, or 
amend any county program, service, function, process, or procedure. The director must apply the 
action uniformly for similar situations and not on a case-by-case basis. The director’s actions will 
only be effective until the next regular meeting of the board of supervisors. The board of 
supervisors may ratify and extend the time for which the director’s action remains in effect. 
 
 
 



 
Sec. 5.  Suspension of Deadlines, Time Frames, and Procedures 
 

County personnel are encouraged to take action as is practical and appropriate to meet 
deadlines or time frames established under state law or county ordinances, however, 
notwithstanding any provision of law, regulation, or policy to the contrary, any deadlines requiring 
action by the county, any Public Body, or county employees are suspended. Time frames for 
review or expedited reviews are also suspended. Failure to meet any deadline or time frame will 
not constitute a default, violation, approval, ratification, or recommendation. Any policies or 
procedures inconsistent with this ordinance are hereby suspended. 
 
Sec. 6 Adoption by Incorporated Towns within the Boundaries of Russell County 

 
Each incorporated town within the boundaries of Russell County are encouraged, 

authorized and/or directed to declare its own state of local emergency and disaster or incorporate 
by reference the County’s local state of emergency and disaster and to adopt an ordinance for the 
continuity of town government.  
 
Sec. 7 Validity and Duration of Ordinance and Resumption of Normal Governmental 
Authority 
 

The provisions herein are presumptively valid, however in the event that any provision of 
this ordinance is declared to be invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction all remaining 
provisions shall not be invalidated and remain in full force and effect. The provisions of this 
Emergency Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect for a period of 60 days, unless amended, 
rescinded or readopted by the Russell County Board of Supervisors in conformity with the notice 
provisions set forth in Virginia Code §15.2-1427 but in no event shall such ordinance be effective 
for more than 6 months after the conclusion of the disaster.  Upon rescission by the Russell 
County Board of Supervisors or automatic expiration as described herein, this emergency 
ordinance shall terminate and normal practices and procedures of government shall resume. 
  
2. This ordinance shall be effective upon adoption. 
 

ADOPTED by the Russell County Board of Supervisors. 

        APPROVED 
 
 
        ______________________________ 
        Rebecca Dye 
        Chairperson    
  
 
 
 
                    



ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Lonzo Lester 
County Administrator 
 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
______________________________ 
M. Katherine Patton 
County Attorney 
 
 

 



 

 
 

 
 

 
Curtis Elswick, CCM, LEED® AP 
 Sr. Vice President/Regional Executive 

 
Skanska USA Building Inc. 
Integrated Solutions 
 

Phone:  540-423-2860 

Email: curtis.elswick@skanska.com 

 

 

 

February 21, 2020 

 

 

Mr. Lonzo Lester, VCO 

County Administrator 

Russell County, Virginia 

137 Highland Drive 

P.O. Box 1208 

Lebanon, VA 24266 

 

Re:   Terms of Engagement 

 Term Contract for Project Management Services 

 Courthouse Renovation & Expansion Project 

 

Dear Mr. Lester: 

 

Thank you for retaining Skanska USA Building Inc. to provide Project Management Services 

on a term contract basis as specified in the Request for Proposals issued by Russell County, 

Virginia (the “County”) on October 24, 2019.  We understand the County would like to proceed 

with Skanska serving as Project Manager for the Courthouse Renovation & Expansion project 

under the PPEA process.  The purpose of this letter is to confirm the scope of the services we 

will provide on the Courthouse Renovation & Expansion project, our compensation, and the 

terms and conditions that will govern our relationship.  The following documents are attached to 

this letter: 

Attachment A – Scope and Time of Services; 

Attachment B – Compensation Terms; 

Attachment C – General Terms of Engagement for Consulting Services; 

Attachment D – Request for Proposals dated October 24, 2019 

With respect to terminology, generally any definition provided in one attachment applies to all 

of them, as well as this letter.  Specifically, the term “Client” as used in the attachments refers 

to your company and the term “Consultant” refers to ours.    



February 21, 2020 

Page 2 

 
 

Please review this letter and its attachments and let me know if you have any questions.  If any 

of the terms and conditions is unacceptable to you, please advise me, so that we can resolve any 

differences and proceed with a clear, complete, and consistent understanding of the relationship. 

I am very excited about the opportunity to work with Russell County throughout the life of this 

term contract as well as the Courthouse Renovation & Expansion project. 

Very truly yours, 

 

Curtis Elswick, CCM, LEED AP 

Sr. Vice President/Regional Executive 

 

Attachments  

(404) 885-6717 

Agreed: 

 

By:          

 

 

Print Name: ________________________________ 

 

 

Date: _____________________________________ 

 

 

 

 



 Page 1 of 3 

(08/2010 ed.)   

 

Attachment A 

 

SKANSKA USA BUILDING INC. 

SCOPE AND TIME OF SERVICES 

 

 

A. SCOPE OF SERVICES:  

 

It is our understanding that the County is seeking assistance with implementing the design and construction 

of the Courthouse Renovation & Expansion project under the PPEA process. 

 

General Project Information  

The current Russell County Courthouse is a two and three-story building of roughly 44,000 SF to include 

courthouse, jail, addition and miscellaneous space.  The size of the building needs to be verified.  The 

original section was a two-story building constructed in 1874. Later additions include a significant three-

story jail addition to the northwest of the original section and a three-story addition to the east. 

 

 
Russell County Courthouse – 53 East Main Street, Lebanon, Virginia 24266                   Bing Aerial Image  

 

It is our understanding that current issues with the existing courthouse include: 

• Space needs and security concerns as well as needed upgrades to the facility. 

• Restroom facilities outside combined courtroom are inadequate. 

• Additional private hearing space is needed. 

• General District Court is held five days per week in one courtroom. 

• Waiting areas are needed as currently the hallway outside of the courtrooms is beings used as a 

waiting area and is not a good situation. 



 Page 2 of 3 

(08/2010 ed.)   

 

• The alley adjacent to the courthouse is a security concern.  There is no secure parking, no sally port, 

so separate stairs or elevators for judges, etc.  Inmates/detainees from the regional jail are brought 

to the courthouse via a van which is parked outside the courthouse and then escorted across the 

alley into the building. 

• Front doors of courthouse remain locked as there are ADA issues (no way for someone in 

wheelchair to access the front door). 

• Adequate parking. 

• The jail (which is a part of the courthouse building) is empty and not being used. 

• A facility condition assessment has not been completed nor has a HAZMAT survey. 

 

Based upon our understanding of the issues and needs as well as our understanding of the PPEA process 

and recent experience managing similar courthouse renovation and expansion projects, we would 

recommend that our services initially consist of assisting with initial planning and procurement of a design-

build team under the PPEA process as follows.   

 

Once a PPEA entity is selected, we would provide the County with a proposal to continue our project 

management services through remaining design GMP contract negotiations, construction and closeout 

phases of the project. 

 

• Review existing information provided by the County to include security evaluation report, existing 

building drawings, and other relevant information. 

• Develop a milestone project schedule and management of the schedule to ensure all parties are 

meeting deadlines in order to maintain progress. 

• Assist with procurement of any other services required during this phase of the project which may 

include geotechnical engineering, HAZMAT surveys or other specialty services required to develop a 

RFP for PPEA design-build services. 

• Assist the County with development of a PPEA solicitation for design-build services.  This would 

include overseeing the development of a program document and conceptual floor plans & 

elevations that would be incorporated into the PPEA solicitation.  We recently helped nearby 

Buchanan County, VA and Dickenson County, VA with development of PPEA procurement 

documentation, evaluation of PPEA proposals, contract negotiations, and overall project 

management through the design, construction and closeout phases of their new Judicial Center.  

This experience will be of significant value to the County in terms of time and money as we can help 

implement a process that has already proven to be successful and alleviate any additional burden 

on the County’s resources. 

• Establish and manage the overall project budget on your behalf and alert the County of any issues 

that may have a positive or negative impact on the budget during this phase of the project. 

• Develop a job cost accounting process for the County so that all invoices are accounted for and paid 

in a timely manner and a monthly reconciliation process is implemented. 

• Issue monthly progress report to the County and presentations to the Board of Supervisors or other 

stakeholders as required. 

• Overall leadership of the project working under the direction of the County including facilitation of 

meetings and decisions necessary to maintain progress. 

 

 

 



 Page 3 of 3 

(08/2010 ed.)   

 

B. SERVICES SCHEDULE:  

 

It is anticipated that our services will start in February 2020 and will be needed through the time 

that an interim agreement is negotiated with the successful PPEA design-build team. 

 

 

C. DELIVERABLES  

 

As described above in Summary of Services. 

 

 

D. CHANGES 

The Parties may mutually agree from time to time to modify the Services or the schedule for their 

performance by written agreement  (“Change Order”) executed by both Parties.     

 

E. CLIENT SUPPLIED DOCUMENTS 

Consultant’s commitments are premised on the receipt of all relevant information that will assist 

Consultant in providing the services noted above.  This includes any geotechnical reports, HAZMAT 

survey reports, utility surveys, and conceptual design information. 



Page 1 of 1 

(08/2010 ed.) 

  

 

Attachment B 

 

SKANSKA USA BUILDING INC. 

COMPENSATION TERMS 

 

We propose providing the initial above scope of services for a Lump Sum Fee of $60,000.  This Lump Sum 

Fee is inclusive of all expenses related to our services with the exception of any printing of any special 

presentation materials or printing of documents larger than 11” X 17” in size.  Our services will be billed on 

a monthly basis based upon services rendered. 

 

 

 



Page 1 of 4 
(08/2010 ed.) 

Attachment C 

 

SKANSKA USA BUILDING INC. 

GENERAL TERMS OF ENGAGEMENT FOR CONSULTING SERVICES 

 

This statement sets forth the standard terms of our engagement as your Consultant.  Unless modified in 

writing by mutual agreement, these terms will be an integral part of our agreement with you. Therefore, we 

ask that you review this statement carefully and contact us before you sign the letter transmitting it to you if 

you have any questions.  

 

1.  CONSULTANT’S WARRANTY TO 

CLIENT 

  
(a) Consultant warrants that it will perform the 
Services in a professional and workmanlike manner 
and that the work product set forth in the 
Deliverables will reflect Consultant’s reasonable 
professional judgment. Consultant may rely upon 
information supplied to it by Client without 
independent verification.  
 
(b) Client shall advise Consultant in writing within 
thirty (30) days of its receipt of a Deliverable if 
Client believes that the work product in the 
Deliverable does not reflect Consultant’s reasonable 
professional judgment.  Consultant shall promptly 
revise any aspect of the Deliverable that does not 
reflect Consultant’s reasonable professional judgment 
or is otherwise defective and resubmit it to Client at 
no additional charge.      
 
(c) The only warranties made by Consultant in 
connection with the Services and Deliverables are 
those set forth in Section 1(a).  Those warranties are 
exclusive and in lieu of all other warranties, whether 
statutory, express or implied, including warranties of 
fitness for particular purpose and those arising from 
course of dealing and usage of trade.  Client’s sole 
and exclusive remedy for warranty nonconformities 
or other defects in the Services or Deliverables shall 
be for Consultant to revise and resubmit the 
Deliverable at no additional charge as provided in 
Section 1(b).  This limited remedy shall apply 
notwithstanding any failure of essential purpose.  
 

2.  CONSULTANT’S INDEMNITY TO 

CLIENT 

  
Consultant shall indemnify, defend and hold Client, 
its officers, directors, employees and affiliates 
harmless from any loss, cost or expense claimed by 
third parties for property damage and/or bodily 
injury, including death (and reasonable attorney’s 
fees and court costs incurred in connection 
therewith), to the proportionate extent such loss, cost 
or expense arose from the negligence or willful 

misconduct of Consultant or its employees in 
connection with this Agreement.  
   

3.  CLIENT’S OWNERSHIP AND USE OF 

DELIVERABLES 

 
Consultant grants to Client a transferable, irrevocable 
and perpetual royalty-free license to retain, copy and 
use the Deliverables in connection with this 
Agreement in exchange for Client’s payment to 
Consultant as required under the Agreement.  Client 
may use the Deliverables for other purposes with 
Consultant’s written consent.  Client agrees that it 
shall not at any time for any purpose disclose the 
Deliverables to any of Consultant’s competitors. 
 

4. CLIENT’S TERMINATION AND 

SUSPENSION RIGHTS 

 
(a) Client shall have the right to terminate the 
Agreement for its convenience at any time and for 
any reason prior to Consultant’s completion of the 
Services on five (5) days prior written notice to that 
effect.  Client shall pay Consultant a termination 
payment composed of amounts due for performance 
of Services through the date of termination and 
Consultant’s reasonable costs of complying with such 
termination, including termination payments to any 
sub-consultants which shall in no event exceed, in the 
aggregate, the stipulated sum under Attachment B. 
Client’s sole and exclusive right to terminate 
Consultant’s performance of the Services is as 
provided in this Section 4(a) and Consultant’s sole 
and exclusive remedy for such termination shall be 
Client’s payment of the termination payment as 
provided in this Section 4(a). The termination  
payment will be invoiced and processed by the 
Parties as set forth in Section 5.  
 
(b) Client may suspend performance of all or any part 
of the Services and thereafter request Consultant to 
resume performance of suspended Services, in each 
case by giving Consultant five (5) days prior written 
notice specifying the date for the suspension or 
resumption of Services.  If Client has not requested 
Consultant to resume performance of suspended 



Page 2 of 4 
(08/2010 ed.) 

Services within thirty (30) days of the suspension 
date, Consultant may thereafter terminate the 
Agreement on written notice to Client and such 
termination will be treated as a termination for 
Client’s convenience under Section 4(a).  If 
Consultant has suffered any adverse cost, schedule or 
other adverse impacts to its performance as a result of 
Client’s suspension of Services, Consultant shall not 
be required to resume performance unless the Parties 
have executed a written amendment that equitably 
adjusts Consultant’s rights and obligations under the 
Agreement as necessary to compensate Consultant 
for such impacts.    
 

5. PAYMENT FOR SERVICES 

 
(a) Client shall pay Consultant for the performance of 
the Services as provided in Attachment B.   
Consultant shall be responsible for all reporting and 
payment obligations with respect to Consultant’s 
personnel relating to worker’s compensation 
insurance, Social Security, state and federal 
unemployment insurance, medical-hospital insurance, 
salary continuation insurance, pension plan costs and 
other employee benefit programs.  If the 
compensation option selected in Attachment B calls 
for the reimbursement of costs, the Client may audit 
such costs in three-month intervals.  Rates, 
multipliers and other fixed percentages, and 
stipulated sums that Client has agreed Consultant 
may charge for its Services are not subject to audit 
except to confirm that Consultant has applied the 
agreed rates, multipliers and other fixed percentages, 
and stipulated sums. 
 
(b) Consultant shall invoice Client in full for the 
Services upon delivery of a final report.  Payment 
terms will be 100% net thirty (30) days on all 
invoiced amounts.  Client shall notify Consultant 
within five (5) business days after receipt of an 
invoice if it disputes all or some portion of the 
invoice.  Client and Consultant shall promptly 
attempt to resolve any dispute concerning payment.  
Client may withhold payment of only that portion of 
an invoice disputed by Client in good faith until the 
dispute has been resolved and shall pay the 
undisputed portion of any invoice net thirty (30) 
days. All late payments shall be subject to interest at 
a rate of one percent per month or the maximum legal 
rate, whichever is less. 
 
(c) Consultant may suspend its performance of the 
Services on five (5) days written notice to Client if 
Client fails to pay Consultant all invoiced amounts 
when due.  Consultant shall not be required to resume 
performance of suspended Services until all past due 

amounts have been paid by Client and, if Consultant 
has suffered any adverse cost, schedule or other 
adverse impacts to its performance as a result of the 
suspension, the Parties have executed a written 
amendment that equitably adjusts Consultant’s rights 
and obligations under the Agreement as necessary to 
compensate Consultant for such impacts.   
 
(d) In the event Consultant has not received payment 
of an amount due from Client within thirty (30) days 
of its due date, Consultant may terminate the 
Agreement on written notice to Client. The 
termination will be treated as a termination for 
Client’s convenience under Section 4(a) and 
Consultant may proceed immediately to recover all 
amounts due from Client.  
  

6. INSURANCE 

 
Consultant shall maintain the following insurance 
coverages in connection with this Agreement: 
 
(a) Workers’ Compensation for statutory limits in 

compliance with the applicable state and federal 
laws, and Employer’s Liability with a limit of 
$1,000,000; 
 

(b) Professional Liability - $1,000,000 - Insurance 
Coverage for Errors and Omissions on Claims 
Made Basis 

 
(c) Comprehensive General Liability with a 

combined single limit of $1,000,000 per 
occurrence and in the aggregate; and 

 
(d) Automobile Liability Insurance with a combined 

single limit of $1,000,000 for bodily injury and 
property damage with respect to vehicles either 
owned, non-owned, and leased by Consultant.  

 

7. CONFIDENTIALITY 

 
(a) Consultant shall not disclose Client’s Confidential 
Information to any third party other than its sub-
consultants if required for the performance of the 
Services.  Client shall not disclose Consultant’s 
Confidential Information to any third party other than 
Client’s prospective lenders and legal counsel.  
“Confidential Information” means a Party’s 
confidential and proprietary business information 
disclosed to the other Party in connection with this 
Agreement that is marked “confidential” or 
“proprietary” at the time of disclosure, but does not 
include information that: (i) is generally available to 
the public at the time of disclosure by a Party, or 
becomes generally available to the public other than 



Page 3 of 4 
(08/2010 ed.) 

as a result of the receiving Party’s violation of this 
Section 7(a); (ii) was in the receiving Party's 
possession prior to its  disclosure hereunder by the 
other Party; (iii) is received by a Party at any time 
from a third party without any confidentiality or other 
restrictions with respect to its use thereof; or (iv) is 
independently developed by the receiving Party.  The 
non-disclosure obligations under this Section 7(a) 
shall expire two (2) years from the date of a Party’s 
first disclosure of Confidential Information to the 
other Party, and shall not apply to restrict a Party 
from disclosing the other Party’s Confidential 
Information if the Party is compelled to do so by law 
or legal process. 
 
(b) Each Party acknowledges that its disclosure of the 
other Party’s Confidential Information in violation of 
Section 7(a) will cause irreparable damage and injury 
to the Party and that the extent and amount of such 
damage and injury may be impossible to ascertain.  
Accordingly, each Party agrees that the other Party 
shall be entitled to seek and obtain injunctive relief 
on short notice from any court of competent 
jurisdiction to immediately restrain and thereafter 
permanently enjoin the other Party from any 
threatened or actual disclosure of Confidential 
Information in violation of Section 7(a).  
  
(c) Client agrees that its disclosure of a Deliverable to 
a competitor of Consultant in violation of Section 3 
shall be treated as a breach of Client’s non-disclosure 
obligation under Section 7(a) for which Consultant 
shall be entitled to obtain injunctive relief under 
Section 7(b).   
  

8. LIABILITY LIMITATIONS 

 
(a) Neither Party shall be liable under or in 
connection with this Agreement for any 
consequential, special, incidental, indirect, punitive 
or exemplary damages, or damages arising from or in 
connection with loss of use, loss of revenue, loss of 
actual or anticipated profit, loss by reason of delay, 
increased cost of construction or cost of capital, 
whether based on delay, contract, tort, negligence, 
strict liability, warranty, indemnity, error and 
omission or otherwise, and each Party hereby 
releases the other from any such liability.  Nothing in 
this Section 8(a) shall limit Client’s payment 
obligations under the Agreement.   
 
(b) In no event shall Consultant’s liability arising out 
of or in connection with the performance or 
nonperformance of any or all Services or other 
obligations under the Agreement exceed the amount 
paid Consultant under the Agreement, whether based 

on delay, contract, tort, negligence, strict liability, 
warranty, indemnity, error and omission or otherwise. 
  
(c) The recommendations, advice, budgetary 
information and schedules to be furnished by Seller 
under this Agreement shall not be deemed to be 
representations, warranties, or guarantees or 
constitute the performance of licensed professional 
services. Consultant shall not be required to provide 
professional services that constitute the practice of 
architecture or engineering.  Consultant shall cause 
any such services to be provided by a properly 
licensed design professional.  Any claim by Client for 
damage, loss, or expense, based directly or indirectly 
upon acts, errors, or omissions of any architect, 
engineer, or other design professional who 
Consultant is required to engage in connection with 
this Agreement shall be made by Client against said 
design professional and its insurer(s) only, and 
Consultant shall have no liability of any kind, direct 
or indirect, for the professional negligence of said 
design professional under this Agreement or 
otherwise. 
 
(d) No general or limited partner, stockholder, 
officer, director, joint venture, beneficiary, trustee, 
employee, or other principals, agents or 
representatives (whether disclosed or undisclosed) of 
the Consultant shall be personally liable to the Client 
for the Consultant's obligations or otherwise, the 
Client hereby agreeing to look solely to the assets of 
the Consultant for the satisfaction of any liability of 
the Consultant hereunder. 
 

9.  DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

 
(a)  Claims, disputes or other matters in question 
between the parties to this Agreement arising out of 
or relating to this Agreement or breach thereof shall 
be subject to and decided by arbitration in accordance 
with the Construction Industry Arbitration Rules of 
the American Arbitration Association currently in 
effect unless the parties mutually agree otherwise. 
 
(b) A demand for arbitration shall be made within a 
reasonable time after the claim, dispute or other 
matter in question has arisen.  In no event shall the 
demand for arbitration be made after the date when 
institution of legal or equitable proceedings based on 
such claim, dispute or other matter in question would 
be barred by the applicable statutes of limitations.  
 
(c) The award rendered by the arbitrator or arbitrators 
shall be final, and judgment may be entered upon it in 
accordance with applicable law in any court having 
jurisdiction thereof. 



Page 4 of 4 
(08/2010 ed.) 

 
 
 

10.  GENERAL 

 
(a) The Client shall furnish required information as 
expeditiously as necessary for the orderly progress of 
the Consultant's Services, and the Consultant shall be 
entitled to rely on the accuracy and completeness 
thereof. 
 
(b) The Client shall designate a representative duly 
authorized to act on the Client's behalf with respect to 
this Agreement. The Client or such authorized 
individual shall render decisions in a timely manner. 
 
(c) Each Party represents and warrants that this 
Agreement has been duly authorized, executed and 
delivered and constitutes a binding agreement 
enforceable against it.  The Parties agree that this 
Agreement supersedes all prior oral and written 
communications and/or agreements that may have 
been made or entered into between them regarding 
the subject matter hereof, including but not limited to 
any proposals, and constitutes the entire agreement 
between them with respect to the subject matter 
hereof. 
 
(d) Neither Party may assign this Agreement, 
including by operation of law, without the other 
Party’s prior written consent and any non-authorized 
assignment shall be null and void and of no force or 
effect. 
 
(e) Client acknowledges that Consultant is not under 
this Agreement providing or agreeing to provide to 
any person or entity, including Client or its lenders, 
any financial, engineering, architectural, legal or 
other opinions or guarantees regarding the 
commercial or technical performance of any process, 
product or system.     
  
(f) Consultant is an independent contractor.  Neither 
Consultant, nor any of its employees, agents or sub-
consultants is or shall be deemed to be an agent or 
employee of Client.  Consultant has sole authority 
and responsibility to employ, discharge or otherwise 
control its employees agents and sub-consultants. 
 
(g) Notices shall be effective hereunder as follows 
only if in writing and addressed to the person 
designated in this provision: (1) upon delivery, if 
delivered personally to the person; (2) upon 
transmission, if transmitted to the facsimile number 
of the person; and (3) upon posting, if by first class or 
overnight mail (postage prepaid).  Unless otherwise 

agreed in writing, notices to Consultant shall be 
delivered to the author of the letter agreement 
executed by the Client, and notices to the Client shall 
be delivered to the recipient of that letter.  
 
(h) If the Services are to be provided in connection 
with a project or facility located in a particular state, 
then this Agreement shall be governed by and 
construed in accordance with the laws of that state, 
excluding any choice of law rules of such state that 
would require application of the laws of another state.  
Otherwise, this Agreement shall be governed by and 
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of 
New Jersey, excluding any choice of law rules of 
such state that would require application of the laws 
of another state. 
  
(i) The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall 
prevail, notwithstanding any variance with any 
purchase order or other similar written instrument 
submitted by Client to Consultant in connection with 
the Services whether formally rejected by Consultant 
or not.  This Agreement may be modified only by a 
written amendment executed by both Parties.  In the 
event that any term or condition of this Agreement is 
found to be illegal or unenforceable, the term or 
condition shall be deemed stricken to the extent and 
in the jurisdictions necessary for compliance with 
applicable law and modified only to the extent 
necessary to comply with applicable law and the 
remaining terms and conditions shall remain in full 
force and effect. 
  
(j) Nothing in this Agreement gives any rights or 
benefits to any person or entity other than the Parties.  
 
(k) The section headings in this Agreement are for 
convenience only and shall not affect the 
interpretation hereof.  
 
(l) The provisions herein shall survive termination of 
the Agreement and/or completion of the Services. 
 
(m) It is understood and agreed that any delay, 
waiver or omission by a Party to exercise any right or 
power arising from any breach or default by the other 
Party of any of term or condition of this Agreement 
shall not be construed to be a waiver by that Party of 
any subsequent breach or default by the other Party 
of the same or other terms or conditions of this 
Agreement. 
 

End of Attachment C 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
RUSSELL COUNTY, VIRGINIA 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) 
PROJECT MANAGEMENT SERVICES  

 
Russell County, Virginia will accept proposals until 
Thursday, November 20, 2019 at 2:00 p.m., from 
qualified firms (“Offerors”) to provide professional 
services for the provision of Project Management 
Services.   
 
To Provide Project Management Services for all phases of 
construction and construction related projects under the 
Public Private Education Facilities Infrastructure Act 
(PPEA).   
 
Russell County intends to select one firm to provide 
these services using the competitive negotiation 
procedure for professional services as defined in 
Section 2.2-4301 of the Virginia Public Procurement Act. 

 
Full copies of the Request for Proposals (RFP) may be 
requested by contacting Mr. Lonzo Lester, County 
Administrator, at (276) 889-8000, or by email at  
lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us. 

 



Page 1 of 13  

 

RUSSELL COUNTY, VIRGINIA 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) 

 
 

FOR 
 

THE PROVISION OF 
 

PROJECT MANAGEMENT SERVICES 
 

 
 
 
 

PREPARED BY: 
 

RUSSELL COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
 
 
PROPOSAL ISSUING DATE:  OCTOBER 24, 2019 

 
PROPOSAL CLOSING DATE: 2:00 P.M., NOVEMBER 20, 2019 



Page 2 of 13  

INDEX 
 

SECTION PAGE 
 
1.0 PURPOSE  ............................................................................................................................ 3. 

 
2.0 SCOPE OF SERVICES  ...................................................................................................... 3.. 

 
3.0 CONTACT PERSON(S) ................................................................................................. 5 

4.0 PROPOSAL ISSUING AND CLOSING ....................................................................... 5 

5.0 PROPOSAL SUBMISSION ............................................................................................ 6. 

6.0 GENERAL CONDITIONS  ................................................................................................ 6. 

7.0 CONTRACT TERM AND CONDITIONS ................................................................... 10 

8.0 INSURANCE ................................................................................................................. 11 

9.0 PAYMENT TERMS ...................................................................................................... 12 

10.0 COOPERATIVE PROCUREMENT ........................................................................... 12 

11.0 PROPOSAL CONTENT .............................................................................................. 12 

12.0 PROPOSAL SELECTION PROCESS ........................................................................ 13 

13.0 PROPOSAL EVALUATIONS .................................................................................... 13 



Page 3 of 13  

Russell County will accept sealed proposals until, but no later than 2:00 p.m., November 20, 
2019 for the provision of Project Management Services. 

 
1.0 PURPOSE 

 
It is Russell County's desire to establish a term contract with a qualified project 
management/construction management firm/firms on an hourly rate basis. 

 
2.0 SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 
The successful proposer may be requested to provide any combination of services listed 
below. 

 
2.1 Provide Project Management Services for all phases of construction and 

construction related projects under the Public Private Education Facilities 
Infrastructure Act (PPEA) and local promulgated guidelines, including: 

 
A. Evaluation of the most advantageous procurement method to be used for 

specific, proposed construction projects. 
 

B. Evaluation of unsolicited bids or proposals. 
 

C. Presentations to relevant committees and boards. 
 

D. Development of project requests for bids or proposals. 
 

E. Evaluation of proposals for proposed construction projects. 
 

F. Coordination with County staff and committees for complete construction 
management services. 

 
2.2 Provide Project Management services for Design-Build Construction projects in 

compliance with the Virginia Public Procurement Act. 
 

2.3 Project management services for other type projects that may include the 
following as requested by the County; 

 
A. Provide preliminary services to develop the concept and scope of work for a 

construction or development related project. 
 

B. Provide general oversight, monitor, and inspect critical construction activities 
for project construction. 

 
C. Provide quality control and ensure that the project meets the technical 

specifications as prescribed by the project manual. 



Page 4 of 13  

D. Serve as a member of the construction team consisting of representatives 
from the owner, architect/engineer, and contractor. 

 
E. Set up project records management system, maintain reports of the 

construction activity and monitor project schedules. 
 

F. Review and provide recommendations to the owner for monthly progress 
payments/change orders and monitor the financial health of the project. 

 
G. Review shop drawings monitor Request for Information (RFI), and track 

submittal approval process. 
 

H. Provide timely responses to in the field engineering/construction issues that 
may arise. 

 
I. Represent the County in resolving questions with the architect, the contractor, 

and subcontractors about the project such as RFI's, potential change orders, 
submittals, shop drawing approvals, and architectural/engineering addendums. 

 
J. Insures third party testing of construction materials and building code 

compliance. 
 

K. Maintain activities log that would summarize the daily activities of the 
construction progress and track milestones and deliverables. 

 
L. Regularly monitors of " As Built" record drawings and changes to the original 

set of architectural drawings. 
 

M. Secure & review O&M manuals for submission to the owner at completion of 
project and insure adequate training of maintenance staff. 

 
N. Prepare final punch list inspection reports and coordinate the final acceptance 

of the project with the owner and architect. 
 

0. When required, lead negotiations in coordination with Owners Construction 
Management Representative, construction inspector and architect with the 
contractor regarding potential change orders or other changes in the scope of 
work. 

 
P. Identify, resolve issues, and conflicts within the project team 

 
2.4 Other duties as may be required by the owner that require the same skills to 

provide the services as listed above on the management of another activity as 
determined by the County. 



Page 5 of 13  

A. Provide services to work with outside agencies or other government entities to 
negotiate contracts or obtain permits. 

 
B. Assist with start-up of or manage special projects as needed. 

 
C. Manage operations of units within the local government for a limited time 

until permanent arrangement can be made. 
 

D. Serve as the County's agent/representative in negotiations with both public 
and private entities in the acquisition of properties, leases, and agreements 
necessary for the completion of County sponsored projects. 

 
2.5 The County desires to establish a contract for an hourly rate with the successful 

proposer. It is anticipated that the hourly rate would become the basis for 
establishing fixed or not to exceed price agreements for identified projects, whose 
scope can be generally defined. 

 
2.6 The County anticipates that services of the successful proposer would be utilized 

for any projects as determined in the final authorized scope of work; however, it 
retains the option of seeking competitive arrangements for any such project or 
phase thereof. 

 
2.7 It is anticipated that price agreements for specific projects would include all costs 

of labor, services, office expenses, phone calls and local travel. Costs for extended 
travel, printing and advertising may be negotiated separately. 

 
3.0 CONTACT PERSON(S) 

Questions regarding this Request for Proposals should be directed to:  

            Lonzo Lester 
Russell County 
137 Highlands Drive 
P.O. Box 1208 
Lebanon, VA 24266 
Phone: 276-889-8000 
E-mail: lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us 

 
4.0 PROPOSAL ISSUING AND CLOSING 

 
4.1 Proposal Issuing Date: October 24, 2019 

 
4.2 Proposal Closing Date: 2:00 PM, November 20, 2019 



Page 6 of 13  

5.0 PROPOSAL SUBMISSION 
 

5.1 Three (3) copies of each proposal must be submitted to the Russell County 
Administrator’s Office, 137 Highland Drive, P.O. Box 1208, Lebanon, Virginia 
24266, in a sealed envelope and marked: SEALED REQUEST FOR 
PROPOSAL (RFP-002), DO NOT OPEN. Proposals must be submitted no later 
than 2:00 PM, November 20, 2019. 

 
5.2 No proposals will be accepted after the proposal closing date. The date of postmark 

will not be considered. 
 

5.3 Proposals may be withdrawn by written request from the proposer to the County 
Administrator prior to the proposal closing date. 

 
5.4 All proposals must be signed by an individual authorized to bind the proposer 

company. 
 

5.5 All proposals become the property of Russell County. 
 
6.0 GENERAL CONDITIONS 

 
6.1 It is the responsibility of the proposer to inquire about and clarify any requirements 

of this Request for Proposals that is not understood. 
 

6.2  Any information relative to interpretation of these specifications shall be requested 
in writing to the Russell County Administrator within five (5) working days of the 
date set for the opening of proposals. 

 
6.3 No protest regarding the validity or appropriateness of the specifications will be 

considered, unless the protest is filed in writing with the County Purchasing Agent 
prior to the closing date for proposals. 

 
6.4 Each proposal is received with the understanding that the acceptance in writing by 

Russell County of the offeror to furnish any or all of the services described therein 
shall constitute a binding agreement which shall bind the proposer to furnish and/or 
deliver the services quoted at the price stated and in accordance with all conditions 
of said accepted proposal. Russell County, on its part is to order from successful 
proposer, except for causes beyond reasonable control, and pay for at the agreed 
prices goods and services specified and delivered. 

 
6.5 Russell County reserves the right to reject any and/or all proposals received. 

 
6.6 Termination for Convenience 

 
This Agreement may be terminated by Russell County upon not less than thirty 
days' written notice to the contractor for the County's Convenience and without 



Page 7 of 13  

cause. In the event of such termination, the Contractor shall be compensated for 
authorized services performed prior to termination. 

 
6.7 Prospective proposers acknowledge, by submission of a proposal, they have had the 

opportunity prior to submitting their proposal, to raise any questions which they 
might have had about the solicitation. 

 
6.8 The successful proposer will be required to provide evidence of an applicable 

current business license. 
 

6.9 The Contractor shall provide a drug-free workplace for Contractor's employees. 
Contractor shall post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants 
for employment, a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacturer, 
sale, distribution, dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance or 
marijuana is prohibited in Contractor's workplace and specifying the actions that 
will be taken against employees for violations of such prohibition. Contractor shall 
state in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of 
Contractor that Contractor maintains a drug-free workplace. Contractor shall 
include these provisions in every subcontract or purchase order of over 
$10,000 so that these requirements are binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. 

 
(Virginia Code §2.2-4312) 

 
6.10 During the performance of this Agreement, the Contractor agrees as follows: 

 
A. The Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for 

employment because of race, religion, color, sex, national origin, age, 
disability, or other basis prohibited by state law relating to discrimination 
in employment, except where there is a bona fide occupational qualification 
reasonably necessary to the normal operation of the contractor. The 
Contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and 
applicants for employment, notices setting forth the provisions of this 
nondiscrimination clause. 

 
B. The Contractor, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed 

by or on behalf of the Contractor, will state that such contractor is an equal 
opportunity employer. 

 
C. Notices, advertisements and solicitations placed in accordance with federal 

law, rule or regulation shall be deemed sufficient for the purpose of meeting 
the requirements of this section. 

 
The contractor will include the provisions of the foregoing paragraphs A, B, and C 
in every subcontract or purchase order of over $10,000, so that the provisions will 
be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. 



Page 8 of 13  

 

(Virginia Code §2.2-4311) 
 

6.11 The Contractor does not, and shall not during the performance of this Agreement, 
knowingly employ an unauthorized alien as defined in the federal Immigration 
Reform and Control Act of 1986. 

 
(Virginia Code §2.2-4311.1) 

 
6.12 If the Contractor is organized as a stock or nonstock corporation, limited liability 

company, business trust, or limited partnership or registered as a registered limited 
liability partnership, he shall be authorized to transact business in the 
Commonwealth as a domestic or foreign business entity if so, required by Title 
13.1 or Title 50 or as otherwise required by law. Contractor shall not allow its 
existence to lapse or its certificate of authority or registration to transact business 
in the Commonwealth to be revoked or cancelled at any time during the term of 
this Agreement. 

 
6.13 PAYMENT CLAUSES 

 
A. The Contractor shall take one of the two following actions within seven 

days after receipt of amounts paid to him by the County for work performed 
by a subcontractor under the Agreement: 

 
1. Pay the subcontractor for the proportionate share of the total 

payment received from the County attributable to the work 
performed by the subcontractor under the Agreement; or 

 
2. Notify the County and subcontractor, in writing, of his intention to 

withhold all or a part of the subcontractor's payment and the reason 
for nonpayment. 

 
B. The Contractor shall pay interest to the subcontractor on all amounts owed 

by the Contractor that remain unpaid after seven days following receipt by 
the Contractor of payment from the County for work performed by the 
subcontractor under the Agreement, except for amounts withheld as 
allowed in subsection A. 

 
C. Unless otherwise provided under the terms of this Agreement, interest shall 

accrue at the rate of one percent per month. 
 

D. The Contractor shall include in each of its subcontracts a provision 
requiring each subcontractor to include or otherwise be subject to the same 
payment and interest requirements with respect to each lower-tier 
subcontractor. 



Page 9 of 13  

E. The Contractor's obligation to pay an interest charge to a subcontractor 
pursuant to the payment clause in this section shall not be construed to be 
an obligation of the state agency or agency of local government. No 
modification to this Agreement shall be made for the purpose of providing 
reimbursement for the interest charge. A cost reimbursement claim shall 
not include any amount for reimbursement for the interest charge. 

 
F. The Contractor shall provide to the County (i) his social security number if 

an individual, or (ii) the federal employer identification number if a 
proprietorship, partnership, or corporation. 

 
(Virginia Code §2.2-4354) 

 
6.14 The Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless County and its officers, agents, 

volunteers, and employees against any and all liability, losses, damages, claims, 
causes of action, suits of any nature, costs, and expenses, including reasonable 
attorney' s fees, resulting from or arising out of Contractor's or its agent's or 
subcontractor's negligent activities or omissions on or near any of the County's 
property or easements, or arising out of or resulting from Contractor's negligence 
in providing any of the services under this Agreement, including, without 
limitation, fines and penalties, violations of federal, state, or local laws, or 
regulations promulgated thereunder, or any personal injury, wrongful death, or 
property damage claims of any type. 

 
6.15 No payment, final or otherwise, nor partial or entire use or acceptance of 

Contractor's work by the County shall constitute acceptance of any professional 
services not in accordance with the Agreement, nor shall the same relieve the 
Contractor of any responsibility for any errors or omissions in connection with the 
Project or operate to release the Contractor from any obligation under the 
Agreement. 

 
6.16 The Contractor shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, codes 

and regulations currently in force or subsequently adopted, including terms and 
provisions of all Russell County Ordinances. 

 
6.17 The claims procedure established pursuant to Virginia Code §2.2-4363 shall apply 

to any contractual disputes arising under this Agreement. 
 

6.18 In the event that any provision of this Agreement is adjudged or decreed to be 
invalid , such ruling shall not invalidate the entire Agreement but shall pertain only 
to the provision in question and the remaining provisions shall continue to be valid, 
binding, and in full force and effect. 

 
6.19 The County does not discriminate against faith-based organizations, and enters 

contracts described in this sub-paragraph on the same basis as any other 
nongovernmental source without impairing the religious character of such 



Page 10 of 13  

organization, and without diminishing the religious freedom of the beneficiaries of 
assistance provided under this section. 

 
A. " Faith-based Organization" means a religious organization that is or applies to 

be a Vendor to provide goods or services for programs funded by the block 
grant provided pursuant to the Personal Responsibility and Work Opportunity 
Reconciliation Act of 1996, P.L. 104-193, as amended. 

 
B. If a Vendor is a faith-based organization, then the Vendor must give to each 

individual who applies for or receives goods, services, or disbursements 
provided pursuant to this Agreement the following notice in bold-faced 
type: 

 
NOTICE: 

 
Neither the County's selection of a charitable or faith-based provider of 
services nor the expenditure of funds under this contract is an endorsement of 
the provider's charitable or religious character, practices, or expression. No 
provider of services may discriminate against you based on religion, a religious 
belief, or your refusal to actively participate in a religious practice. If you 
object to a particular provider because of its religious character, you may 
request assignment to a different provider. If you believe that your rights have 
been violated, please discuss the complaint with your provider or notify the 
appropriate person as indicated in this form. 

 
6.20 Contractor shall, at the County's request, provide documentation of their authority to 

transact business in the Commonwealth of Virginia. 
 
7.0 CONTRACT TERM AND CONDITIONS 

 
7.1 The initial term of this contract agreement shall commence January 1, 2020 and 

extend through December 31, 2020. Russell County at its option may extend the 
initial term for up to four (4) additional, one (1) year periods, to be mutually 
negotiated at a reasonable time prior to the annual expiration date of December 31 
of the respective year. Depending upon proposals received, the County may 
determine that it is in their best interest to contract with more than one firm. 

 
7.2 It is understood that the basis for contract pricing is an hourly rate structure, 

however the County may request a total not to exceed price for specific projects, 
based upon a scope of work provided. Terms, conditions and pricing of this 
contractual arrangement may be extended to the Russell County School Board, 
Russell County Public Service Authority and the Industrial Development 
Authority of Russell County, when so requested and at the discretion of the County. 

 
7.3 A. This contract may be terminated by Russell County upon not less than thirty 

(30) days written notice to the contractor for the County' s convenience and 
without cause. In the event of such termination, the 



Page 11 of 13  

contractor shall be compensated for satisfactory services performed prior 
to termination. 

 
B.     Any sub-agreement for services to be provided for specific projects as 

authorized under this contract, whether by Russell County or other eligible 
cooperative purchasing public body, may be terminated upon a thirty (30) 
day written notice to the contractor. In the event of such termination, the 
contractor shall be compensated for satisfactory services performed prior to 
termination. 

 
7.4 The anticipated form of a resulting contract shall include a narrative description of 

negotiated terms, conditions and cost; the original Request for Proposals, Addenda 
information and proposal response. 

 
8.0 INSURANCE 

 
8.1 The Contractor shall procure, maintain, and provide proof of insurance coverage 

for injuries to persons and/or property damage as may arise from or in connection 
with the work performed on behalf of Russell County by the Contractor, his agents, 
representatives, employees or sub-contractors. Such coverage shall be maintained 
by the Contractor for the duration of the contract period. 

 
Minimum Coverage and Limits: 

 
1. General Liability $2,000,000 combined single limit s per occurrence. 

 
2. Worker' s Compensation: As required by the Worker's Compensation Act 

of Virginia. 
 

3. Automobile Liability: $1,000,000 per occurrence. 
 

8.2 All Coverage 
 

A. The insurer shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation against Amherst 
County, its officers/officials, agents, employees and volunteers for losses 
arising from work performed by the Contractor. 

 
B. The insurer shall provide 30 days written notice to Russell County before 

any cancellation, suspension or void of any coverage in whole or part where 
such provision is reasonable. 

 
8.3 Verification of Coverage 

 
The contractor shall furnish Russell County certificates of insurance with 
endorsements affecting coverage. The certificates and endorsements are to be 
signed by a person authorized by the insurance company to bind coverage on its 



Page 12 of 13  

behalf. The certificates and endorsements are to be received and approved by the 
County before commencement of work by the contractor. 

 
8.4 Sub-Contractors 

 
All coverage for sub-contractors of the Contractor shall be subject to all the 
requirements stated herein. 

 
9.0 PAYMENT TERMS 

 
Russell County will make payment in full within 30 days of submission of an itemized 
invoice, and acceptance of work by the County. Invoice(s) should be submitted on a no 
more frequent than monthly basis. 

 
10.0 COOPERATIVE PROCUREMENT 

 
10.1 Pursuant to the Code of Virginia, §2.2-4304 "Cooperative Procurement", and 

Russell County's Request for Proposals Number 3354, this agreement is available 
for use by all "public bodies" as defined by §2.2-4301 and referenced by 
§2.2-4304 of the Code of Virginia. 

 
10.2 Any public body desiring to utilize services described in this Request for Proposals 

must notify the Russell County Purchasing Department of their intentions to do so. 
Russell County shall have no responsibilities for cooperative procurement contract 
agreements for public bodies other than themselves. 

 
11.0 PROPOSAL CONTENT 

  
Proposers should address, but need not be limited to, all requirements listed herein, with a 
written proposal and should not assume that an opportunity will exist to add such matters 
after the proposal is submitted. 

 
11.1   Provide all contact information and brief background of your firm and its capabilities. 

Please sate the location of your firm’s headquarters and any branch offices. 
 

11.2 Identify the primary officers of your firm and describe credentials and experience 
of employees who would be assigned to the proposed project. Please state the 
number of persons employed by your firm with required training and qualifications 
relative to the Scope of Service requested in this Request for Proposals. 

 
11.3 List at least three (3) references with contact information (include telephone 

number) for which your firm has provided similar services to those requested in the 
previous three (3) years. 



Page 13 of 13  

11.4 Provide evidence of your ability to provide minimum insurance coverage 
requirements as specified in Section 8.0 of this document. 

 
11.5 Please provide a brief narrative description of your understanding of the contractual 

cost arrangement requested. Provide your proposed hourly rate(s) for the discipline 
or disciplines proposed to meet the requirements of this Request for Proposals. 

 
12.0 PROPOSAL SELECTION PROCESS 

 
12.1 This Request for Proposals is part of a competitive procurement process which 

helps to serve the best interest of Russell County. It also provides firms with a fair 
opportunity for their services to be considered. The process of competitive 
negotiation being used in this case should not be confused with the different 
process of "competitive sealed bidding". The latter process is usually used where 
goods and/or services being purchased can be precisely described and price is 
usually the sole determining factor. With competitive negotiation on the other 
hand, price is not required to be the sole determining factor, although it may be, 
and Russell County has the flexibility that it needs to negotiate with one or more 
firms to arrive at a mutually agreeable relationship. Offeror's are to make written 
proposals which present the offeror's qualifications and understanding of the work 
to be performed. Offeror's are asked to address each evaluation criterion and to be 
specific in presenting their qualifications. Your proposal should provide all the 
information which you consider pertinent to your qualifications for the project. 

 
12.2 Selection shall be made of two (2) or more offerors deemed to be fully qualified 

and best suited among those submitting proposals, based on the factors involved in 
the Request for Proposals. Negotiations shall then be conducted with each of the 
offerors so selected. Price shall be considered but need not be the sole determining 
factor. After negotiations have been conducted with each offeror so selected, 
Russell County shall select the offeror which, in its option, has made the best 
proposal and shall award the contract to that offeror. 

 
13.0 PROPOSAL EVALUATIONS 

 
13.1 All proposals submitted will be reviewed and evaluated by a representative 

committee for the Russell County Board of Supervisors. 
13.2 Following is the specific evaluation criteria to be used for judging proposals and 

the total possible point value to be assigned to each evaluation factor. The 
maximum poss1'ble score that a proposal could receive is 100 points. 

EVALUATION CRITERIA POINTS 
A. Firms' qualifications to provide the required services. 35 
B. Experience. 30 
C References. 10 
D. Cost. 25 

 



USER AGREEMENT  
Page | 1  

USER AGREEMENT 
FOR  

SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL 
 

 THIS AGREEMENT, made and executed this the    day of   , 2020 

by and between the COUNTY OF RUSSELL, Virginia, hereinafter referred to as “User”, and the 

CUMBERLAND PLATEAU WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY, an Authority created 

pursuant to the Virginia Water and Sewer Authorities Act, hereinafter referred to as “Authority”. 

ARTICLE I – BASIC INTENT AND PURPOSE 

1. This Agreement is entered into pursuant to the authorization and mandate of the 

Virginia Water and Sewer Authorities Act (hereinafter the “Act”). 

2. The Authority has all the powers, rights and duties as described in the Act that are 

specified in its Articles of Incorporation and may exercise the same in the 

performance of its functions as set out in the Act. 

3. The purposes for which the Authority was created are to acquire, purchase, lease as 

lessee, construct, reconstruct, improve, extend, operate, maintain and finance a 

Garbage and Refuse Collection and Disposal System, as that term is defined in the 

Act, within, without, or partly within and partly without the Counties of Buchanan, 

Dickenson and Russell, Virginia. 

4. The Authority, subject to the terms and conditions hereinafter set out, desires to 

maintain a safe, sanitary and environmentally sound Disposal System (hereinafter 

defined) and for and by such Disposal System to accept and dispose of the 

Disposable Solid Waste (as the term is defined herein, and hereinafter referred to 

as DSW) of the User subsequent to the start up of such Disposal System. 

5. The User, subject to the terms and conditions hereinafter set out, desires to use and 

support the Authority’s Disposal System by ensuring the disposal by means of the 

Disposal System of the DSW generated within, collected by, or otherwise under the 

control of the User. 

6. The Disposal System shall be established, operated and maintained in accordance 

with the Authority’s Plan of Operation, attached hereto and incorporated herein, 

which is intended to be effective upon start up of the Disposal System, and which 

may be amended by the Authority from time to time. 



USER AGREEMENT  
Page | 2  

ARTICLES II – DEFINITIONS 

1. Disposable Solid Waste (hereinafter DSW) – Any Solid Waste other than 

Hazardous Waste, specifically including Processible Solid Waste, Special Waste 

(approved, as set forth in the Plan of Operation) and Non-Processible Solid Waste 

(as such terms are defined in the Plan of Operation). 

2.  Disposable System – All those plans and facilities owned, leased or operated by 

the Authority designed to collect, manage and/or dispose of Solid Waste and those 

designed to accomplish recycling and/or volume waste reduction by other methods 

from DSW; and the land, structures, vehicles and equipment for us in connection 

therewith.  

3. Hazardous Waste – a Solid Waste or combination of Solid Waste which, because 

of its quantity, concentration or physical, chemical or infectious characteristics 

may: (a) cause or significantly contribute to an increase in mortality or an increase 

in serious irreversible, or incapacitating reversible, illness; or (b) pose a substantial 

present or potential hazard to human health, the Disposal System, or the 

environment when improperly treated, stored, transported, disposed of or otherwise 

managed. The foregoing definition is intended to include any waste now or 

hereafter designated as “hazardous” by State or Federal agencies (including the 

United States Environmental Protection Agency) with jurisdiction and authority 

and authority to promulgate and enforce rules and regulations for the handling and 

disposal of hazardous and other wastes. 

4. Non-Conforming Waste – (a) Any waste excluded from the definition of Solid 

Waste and (b) Special Waste (as defined in the Plan of Operation) which has not 

been approved by the Authority. 

5. Phase I Stat Up Date – The date on which Phase I of the Disposal System, as 

described in the Plan of Operation, is ready to commence full operations. 

6. Phase II – Start Up Date – The date on which the Authority’s Recycling Facility is 

ready to commence full operations for the disposal of PSW. 

7. Plan of Operation – A plan adopted by the Authority, as amended or supplemented, 

setting forth the types of material acceptable to the Authority for disposal, the times 

and places where material will be received by the Authority, the methods of 



USER AGREEMENT  
Page | 3  

collecting fees charged by the Authority for disposal service, and such other 

information as will describe operations procedures, control use of the Disposal 

System and provide instruction and guidelines to users of the Disposal System. The 

Plan of Operation is attached hereto and made a part hereof but may be amended 

or supplemented by the Authority in its sole discretion from time to time. 

8. Solid Waste – Any garbage, trash, brush, refuse, sludge (as defined in the Plan of 

Operation) and other discarded material, including solid, liquid, semi-solid or 

contained gaseous material, resulting from industrial, commercial, mining and 

agricultural operations and from community activities and residences, but does not 

include (i) solid and dissolved materials in domestic sewage, (ii) solid or dissolved 

material in irrigation return flows or in industrial discharges which are sources 

subject to permit from the State Water Control board, (iii) source, special nuclear, 

or by-product material as defined by the Federal Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as 

amended, (iv) to the extent such Solid Waste is transported from the Transfer 

Stations to any landfill operated by an entity other than the Authority, and other 

materials not allowed under the permits, licenses and approvals relating to such 

landfill, or (v) asbestos.  

9. Tipping Fee – The charge made by the Authority for the disposal of DSW (as set 

forth in the Plan of Operation). The Tipping Fee shall be calculated by determining 

the total of (a) the disposal fee charged by any landfill operator with whom the 

Authority may contract for the ultimate disposal of any Solid Waste delivered 

hereunder; (b) the transportation costs incurred in the transport of DSW from the 

Authority’s Transfer Stations to any such landfill, (c) the amount of principal 

premium, if any, and interest or any other amounts due, or to become due, with 

respect to any indebtedness of the Authority or required to avoid a default with 

respect to such indebtedness, and (d) all expenses of the Authority relating to the 

operation and maintenance of the Disposal System, including any required reserves. 

This amount shall be divided by the tonnage projected to be received to derive and 

cost per ton to be charged for use of the Disposal System. These charges may be 

amended pursuant to the terms and conditions contained herein. 

 



USER AGREEMENT  
Page | 4  

ARTICLE III – TERM OF AGREEMENT 

1. This Agreement shall become effective and operations hereunder shall commence 

on or about June 1, 2020 or the date on which, in the opinion of the Authority, Phase 

I of the Disposal System of the Authority as described in the Plan of Operation is 

ready to begin full and continuous handling of the DSW of the User, whichever 

first occurs. The Authority shall give the User as much advance notice of the date 

on which such operations are to commence as is practicable under the 

circumstances. This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties, commencing 

upon the execution hereof, and extending for a period of five (5) years, or until such 

time as the Authority has defeased or paid the debt incurred in the financing of its 

Disposal System, whichever occurs later, Unless written notice of termination is 

sent to the other parties to this Agreement not less than 120 days before the 

expiration of the initial term hereof, this Agreement shall automatically be extended 

upon the same terms and conditions (fees to be adjusted as described in the Plan of 

Operation), without further action by the parties, upon the expiration of the initial 

term as described hereinabove, for a five (5) year renewal term. In the event this 

Agreement is extended for such five (5) year renewal term, the term of this 

Agreement may also be extended upon the expiration of such second renewal term 

for up to two (2) consecutive five (5) year renewal terms, upon terms and conditions 

mutually acceptable to the User and the Authority. 

ARTICLE IV – DELIVERY CONDITIONS 

1. The User hereby agrees to deliver or cause to be delivered to the Disposal System 

in accordance with the Plan of Operation, substantially all (at least 95 percent per 

year) of the DSW which is generated or collected by or within or under the control 

of the User from the after the Phase I Start Up Date and throughout the remaining 

term of this Agreement. The User will also use its best efforts to enter into 

contractual agreements with each locality, generator and commercial hauler of 

DSW for their use of the Disposal System. 

2. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement and the Plan of Operation, 

the Authority hereby agrees to receive and accept all DSW delivered to the Disposal 



USER AGREEMENT  
Page | 5  

System by the User after the Phase I Start Up Date and throughout the remaining 

term of this Agreement. 

3. The Authority shall provide one or more Transfer Stations to the User for the 

disposal of DSW. The location of all Transfer Stations shall be specified in the Plan 

of Operation. The Authority shall have the right to designate a separate point or 

points of delivery for any grades or categories of DSW which in its opinion require 

special handling or methods of disposal.    

The User hereby agrees not build or allow to be built any facilities that would 

compete with the Disposal System during the duration of the term of this 

Agreement. 

ARTICLE V – CHARGES AND FEES FOR USE OF AUTHORUTY DISPOSAL 

SYSTEM 

1. The User agrees to pay to the Authority fees as established under fee schedules 

adopted by the Authority in accordance with the Act, for the disposal of DSW 

delivered to the Disposal System by the User. The Authority may, but is not 

obligated to, establish individual fee schedules for various types of users and grades 

or categories of DSW which require special handling or methods of disposal. It is 

understood between the parties that the Authority may establish a special schedule 

of fees, at its sole discretion, for individuals who may deliver Household DSW (as 

defined in the Plan of Operation) to the Authority for disposal in a privately owned 

automobile or a low side pickup. 

2. The Authority shall invoice the User for the Tipping Fees on a monthly basis 

(within them (10) days after the end of the month). Such invoices will show the 

total tonnage received by the Authority attributable to the User during the billing 

period of all DSW. Such invoices shall be due and payable without offset on the 

last day of the billing period following the billing period covered by the invoice. 

3. The DSW delivered to the Disposal System will be weighed for the purpose of 

determining the actual tonnage received. Fractions of tons actually received shall 

be invoiced on an accumulated basis each month. In the event of inoperation of the 

Authority’s weighing scales or other measuring device, an estimate of the amount 



USER AGREEMENT  
Page | 6  

of DSW received will be computed based on the average amount received per 

vehicle, when dumping records for such vehicle for he sixe (6) months immediately 

preceding are available, or when such records are not available, will be computed 

based on the average amount received per vehicle of like size and/or compaction 

ratio. 

4. The Authority shall determine its fees for any given operating year based on the 

factors specified in the Act together with the Authority’s projection and total 

tonnage. Such fees so determined shall be modified (1) to correct a material error 

in calculation or projections, (2) to prevent a default in the payment of the principal 

or the premium, if any, or interest on or any other amounts due, or be become due, 

with respect to any indebtedness of the Authority, or (3) to prevent a default under 

any resolution, trust indenture, trust agreement or other agreement authorizing or 

securing indebtedness of the Authority. Such fees may be modified to provide for 

an alternative landfill site or to correct a non-material error in calculation or 

projections. In addition, notwithstanding any contrary provision of this Agreement, 

the Authority shall revise its charges as often as may be necessary so as to produce 

revenues sufficient at all times to ensure timely payment of the cost of operation 

and maintenance of the Disposal System, and debt service on its indebtedness. 

5. In the event the total tons of DSW delivered to the Authority’s disposal System 

during any operating period do not meet its projections or fess and income to the 

Authority are insufficient to meet its budgetary and financial requirements, 

including payment of all amounts due under or compliance with any terms of any 

resolution, trust indenture, trust agreement or other agreement authorizing or 

securing indebtedness of the Authority, and obligations, or to prevent a default 

thereon, the Authority shall compute the sums per ton required to make up the 

deficit or comply with such terms, and the User shall be assessed the amount so 

determined for each ton of DSW delivered thereafter to the Authority for disposal. 

ARTICLE VI – TITLE TO SOLID WASTE; LIABILITY FOR SOLID WASTE 

1. Title to all DSW delivered to the Disposal System by the User shall pass to the 

Authority when recorded by the Authority’s weighing scales or other measuring 

devices at the Authority’s facilities, EXCEPT that title to Hazardous Waste and 



USER AGREEMENT  
Page | 7  

Non-Conforming Waste shall not vest or pass to the Authority even if Hazardous 

Waste and Non-Conforming Waste is delivered to and unknowingly accepted by 

the Authority. Inoperability or unavailability of the Authority’s measuring devices 

shall not alter the transfer of title to DSW delivered to and accepted by the 

Authority. The User further agrees to join with the Authority in defense of any 

adverse claim to ownership of DSW. 

2. In the event that Hazardous Waste is inadvertently or unknowingly delivered to 

and/or accepted by the Authority, it is understood and agreed between the parties 

that liability for any environmental contamination, adverse affects, penalties or 

damages resulting from, and necessary costs of correction, shall be imposed upon 

the User. To the extent permitted by law the Authority shall be indemnified and 

save harmless by the User from and against liability with results from said 

Hazardous Waste delivery and acceptance.  

3. To the extent permitted by law the Authority will indemnify and save harmless the 

User from and against any and all suits, actions, legal proceedings, claims, 

demands, damages, costs, expenses, and reasonable attorney’s fees incurred by the 

User to the extent that such result from (a) any breach by the Authority of any of 

its agreements hereunder, and (b) any negligent act or omission of the Authority, 

its employees or agents in the performance of services under this Agreement; 

provided, however, that the Authority shall not be so obligated to the extent that 

such result from any negligent or intentional act or omission of the User or of any 

of its officers, agents, servants, employees, or contractors or to the extent that such 

results from any breach by the User of its agreements hereunder. 

4. To the extent permitted by law the User will indemnify and save harmless the 

Authority from and against any and all suits, actions, legal proceedings, claims, 

demands, damages, costs, expenses, and reasonable attorney’s fees incurred by the 

Authority to the extent that such result from (a) any breach by the User of any of 

its agreements hereunder, and (b) any negligent act or omission of the User, its 

employees or agents in the performance of services under this Agreement; 

provided, however, that the User shall not be so obligated to the extent that such 

result from any negligent or intentional act or omission of the Authority or of any 



USER AGREEMENT  
Page | 8  

of its officers, agents, servants, employees or contractors or to the extent that such 

results from any breach by the Authority of its agreements hereunder. 

ARTICLE VII – DEFAULT 

1. In the event of default, hereunder, the nondefaulting party shall have the right, but 

not the obligation, to cure such default and to charge the defaulting party for the 

cost of curing said default, and to obtain reimbursement thereof. 

2. Upon the occurrence of a default by the Authority hereunder, any User, after giving 

notice of such default to all parties, may bring suit by mandamus or other 

appropriate proceeding to require the Authority to perform its duties under the Act 

and this Agreement or to enjoin any acts in violation of the Act or this Agreement. 

3. Upon the occurrence of a default by a User, the Authority, after giving notice of 

such default to all parties, may bring suite by mandamus or other appropriate 

proceeding to require the User to perform its duties under the Act and this 

Agreement or to enjoin any acts in violation of the Act or this Agreement. 

4. No remedy in this Agreement conferred upon or reserved to the parties is intended 

to be exclusive or any other remedy, and each remedy is cumulative and in addition 

to every other remedy given under this Agreement or now or hereafter existing at 

law, in equity or by stature. 

ARTICLE VIII – NO PARTNERSHIP 

Nothing herein shall be construed to constitute a joint venture between the 

Authority and the User or the formation of a partnership. 

ARTICLE IX – FORCE MAJEURE 

1. Failure of any party to perform hereunder, including failure of the User to deliver 

or cause to be delivered DSW, and inability of the Authority to accept DSW, by 

reason of Force Majeure (as defined in the Plan of Operation) shall not constitute a 

default or be cause for termination of this Agreement. However, the party so failing 

to perform shall immediately notify the other party of the failure, including reasons 

thereof, and shall make reasonable efforts to correct such failure to perform at the 

earliest possible date. 



USER AGREEMENT  
Page | 9  

2. If, by reason of Force Majeure, the Authority cannot accept DSW at the Transfer 

Station located within the User’s region, the Authority shall immediately provide 

for and notify the User of an alternate delivery points(s). 

3. Solely in the event that no facilities of the Authority are available for disposal of 

DSW the User shall have the right, but not the obligation, to dispose of or cause to 

be disposed of DSW at locations other than the Transfer Station located within the 

User’s region until the cause of the Authority’s inability to accept he User’s DSW 

is cured, but not thereafter. 

ARTICLE X – EXTENT OF AGREEMENT 

This Agreement, together with the Plan of Operation, represents the entire 

agreement between the parties hereto and supersedes all prior negotiations, 

representations or agreements, either written or oral. This Agreement shall not be 

modified, altered or amended unless in writing and signed by the parties. 

ARTICLE XI – ARBITRATION 

1. All claims, disputes and other matters in question relating to this Agreement or the 

breach thereof shall be decided by arbitration in Russell County, Virginia or at such 

other place as the parties agree, in accordance with the rules of the American 

Arbitration Association then obtaining. This agreement to arbitrate shall be 

specifically enforceable under prevailing arbitration law. 

2. Notice of the demand for arbitration shall be filed in writing with the other party to 

this Agreement and with the American Arbitration Association. The demand shall 

be made within a reasonable time after the claim, dispute, or other matter in 

question has arisen. In no event shall a demand for arbitration be made after the 

applicable statute of limitations would bar institution of legal or equitable 

proceedings based on such claim, dispute or other matter in question. 

3. The award at such arbitration shall be final, and judgement may be entered thereon 

by a court of competent jurisdiction. 

 

 



USER AGREEMENT  
Page | 10  

ARTICLE XII – GENERAL 

1. In the event that any provisions of this Agreement shall be held to be invalid, the 

remaining provisions shall be valid and binding upon the parties. 

2. One or more waivers by either party hereto of performance of any obligation and/or 

covenant hereunder shall not be construed as a waiver of subsequent breach of any 

obligation and/or covenant. 

3. Neither the User nor the Authority shall delegate or assign its duties under this 

Agreement without the written consent of the other. 

4. The construction and performance of this Agreement shall be in accordance with 

the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia. 

5. Any notices hereunder shall be in writing addressed to the party as set forth below 

or at such other address as may be designated in writing to the other parties hereto. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be properly 

executed and attested by duly authorized officials as of this the   day of   , 2020.  

 Cumberland Plateau Regional Waste Management Authority 

 

 By         (SEAL) 
  CPRWMA Chairman,     
  P.O. Box 386 
  Lebanon, Virginia 24266 
  Telephone: (276) 883-5403 
    
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
           (SEAL) 
CPRWMA Secretary, Earl Rife 
 
 
     

 

 

 



USER AGREEMENT  
Page | 11  

County of Russell County, Virginia 

 

    By         (SEAL) 
      Chairman, Russell County Board of Supervisors 
          137 Highland Drive 
          Lebanon, Virginia 24266 

   Telephone: (276) 889-8000 
   Fax: (276) 889-8011 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
         (SEAL) 
County Administrator, Russell County Board of Supervisors 
 
 ATTEST: 
 
         (SEAL) 
 County Attorney, Russell County Board of Supervisors 
 

  
Subscribed and acknowledged to before me by Chairman of Cumberland Plateau Regional 

Waste Management Authority this the ____________day of ____________, 2020. 

 My Commission expires: __________________________. 

 My Registration number:__________________________. 

 

______________________ 
NOTARY PUBLIC 

STATE OF VIRGINIA, 
AT LARGE, to-wit: 

 Subscribed and acknowledged to before me by the Chairman of the Russell County 

Board of Supervisors this the _____________ day of _____________, 2020.  

 My Commission expires: __________________________. 

 My Registration number:__________________________. 
 

       ________________________ 



USER AGREEMENT  
Page | 12  

       NOTARY PUBLIC 

STATE OF VIRGINIA, 
AT LARGE, to-wit: 
 

  Subscribed and acknowledged to before me by the County Administrator for 

Russell County, Virginia, this the __________day of,____________        , 2020. 

 My Commission expires:__________________________. 
 
 My Registration number:__________________________. 
 

       __________________________ 

       NOTARY PUBLIC 

STATE OF VIRGINIA, 
AT LARGE, to-wit: 
 

  Subscribed and acknowledged to before me by the Deputy County Attorney 

for Russell County, Virginia, this __________day of     , 2020.  

 My Commission expires:__________________________. 
 
 My Registration number:__________________________. 
 
      ______________________________ 

       NOTARY PUBLIC 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 



 

Board of Supervisors Action Item C-1 – C-8 
   137 Highland Drive Presenter: Administrator 

Lebanon, VA 24266 

                   Meeting: 5/4/20         6:00 PM 
 

 

 
 

County Administrator Reports & Requests 
The County Administrator Reports & Request for May 2020: 

 
 
REPORTS 
 
1. RC Landfill 258 & 515 Groundwater/Gas Closures………………………………..C-1 
 
REQUESTS 

  
1. CDBG Planning Grant – Cleveland Sewer Treatment Plant Upgrade…….……C-2 

 
2. VT CDAC Letter of Confirmation for U.S. Environmental Protection  

Agency’s (EPA) Brownfields Assessment Grant…………………………………..C-3 
 

3. Russell County Sheriff & Washington County Sheriff Mutual Aid and                        
Cooperation Agreement for Law Enforcement Services (2020-2023)………….C-4 

 
4. Russell County Sheriff & Buchanan County Sheriff Mutual Aid and                        

Cooperation Agreement for Law Enforcement Services (2020-2023)………….C-5 
 

5. CPRHA Five-Year Action Plan & Annual Environmental Review Plan………...C-6 
 

6. Lebanon Elementary School Wall Repair Contract .………………………………C-7 
 

7. Honaker School Property Transfer Public Hearing………………………………..C-8 
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s): 
Board Discretion.  

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Board Discretion.  

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 
• Various 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

http://www.russellcountyva.us/
http://www.russellcountyva.us/


























From: Jim Baldwin
To: lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us
Cc: "Jennifer Chumbley"; "Debbie Milton"
Subject: FW:
Date: Friday, May 1, 2020 11:10:54 AM
Attachments: 20200430144738518.pdf

Lonzo- I haven’t gotten any feedback on the Planning Grant application, so I think it’s good to put
before your Board on Monday.      Call if you have any questions.       Jim
 

From: Jim Baldwin [mailto:jimbaldwin@bvu.net] 
Sent: Thursday, April 30, 2020 2:55 PM
To: 'Jennifer Chumbley' <jennifer.townofclevelandva@gmail.com>;
'lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us' <lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us>; 'Weaver, Matt'
<matthew.weaver@dhcd.virginia.gov>; 'Blevins, Joe' <joe.blevins@dhcd.virginia.gov>; 'Keene,
Willard' <willard.keene@deq.virginia.gov>; 'Spencer, William' <william.spencer@deq.virginia.gov>;
'Jeffrey Hurst' <jeffrey.hurst@deq.virginia.gov>; 'Katie Patton' <kpatton@chafinlaw.com>; 'Debbie
Milton' <debbiemilton@bvu.net>; 'brian.stanley@vdh.virginia.gov' <brian.stanley@vdh.virginia.gov>
Cc: 'rebecca.dye' <rebecca.dye@russellcountyva.us>; 'steve.breeding'
<steve.breeding@russellcountyva.us>
Subject: FW:
 
All- Here is the revised CDBG Planning grant application that the Russell County BofS will consider at
their meeting this coming Monday evening. If you have any changes or suggestions, let me know
asap and I’ll get them to Lonzo.
 
For Brian’s information, it was decided that an Urgent Need CDBG application was not the best route
to go, so the Declaration from the State Health Commissioner is not needed. Also, it is hoped that
other sources of funding for the immediate need for pump and haul will be identified. Bill Spencer is
tracking down some possibilities.
 
Let me know if there is anything we can do to assist you in this effort.  
 
Jim
 
 

mailto:jimbaldwin@bvu.net
mailto:lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us
mailto:jennifer.townofclevelandva@gmail.com
mailto:debbiemilton@bvu.net

































 
  

Russell County Virginia 
“The Heart of Southwest Virginia” 

 
Oris Christian   Carl Rhea 
At-Large  District 3  
 
Tim Lovelace  Rebecca Dye, Chairperson David Eaton 
District 1 District 6 District 4 
  
Lou Ann Wallace Steve Breeding, Vice-Chairman Lonzo Lester 
District 2 District 5 County Administrator 
 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

  

 

    

    

    

  

May 4, 2020 
 
Elizabeth Gilboy, Director 
Community Design Assistance Center/Virginia Tech 
101 S Main St (0450) 
Blacksburg, VA  24060 
 
Dear Ms. Gilboy, 
 
Please accept this letter as confirmation that Russell County Board of Supervisors understands 
that the Community Design Assistance Center (CDAC) at Virginia Tech received a grant from 
the U. S. Environmental Protection Agency’s (EPA) Brownfields Assessment grant program to 
assist communities in southwest Virginia assess and develop conceptual designs for the 
redevelopment of potentially contaminated sites. 
 
As a community selected to receive CDAC’s services, we understand that there is no charge for 
the services and no cash or in-kind match requirement on the part of Russell County Board of 
Supervisors.  We also understand that our obligation will be to establish a Stakeholders 
Committee comprised of the appropriate officials that will provide input to help develop the 
design concept and that serve as the voice of the community.  The list of those on the 
Stakeholders Committee will be sent to CDAC prior to the start of any work.  We will also 
identify a point of contact who will serve as the main point of contact for both CDAC and 
Cardno. 
 
Russell County Board of Supervisors accepts the services of CDAC (no cost) and Cardno (no 
cost). 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Rebecca Dye 
Chairperson 
County of Russell Virginia  
 

 



From: Elizabeth Gilboy
To: lonzo.lester
Cc: Lou Wallace; Nick Proctor; joe.morici@cardno.com
Subject: Conceptual Redevelopment Plan for the former Sun Motors Property
Date: Wednesday, April 22, 2020 9:55:43 AM
Attachments: EPA Sun Cover Letter_200421.pdf

EPA Sun Transfer Station Conceptual Design PRO_200421.pdf
LetterofCommitmentSample_180627.docx

Dear Mr. Lester,
 
The Community Design Assistance Center (CDAC) of Virginia Tech received a U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Brownfields Assessment grant to
assess potentially contaminated sites in southwest Virginia communities and help these
communities develop conceptual redevelopment plans for the properties.  The EPA
Assessment Grant provides funding for CDAC to help communities determine if a site
might be contaminated and then to plan for the possible redevelopment of that site
through conceptual design development.  EPA does not require or commit
communities to any cleanup if the community participates in this process.

Attached is a proposal for creating a conceptual redevelopment plan for the former
Sun Motors property and conducting a Phase I Environmental Site Assessment (ESA)
for that property.  CDAC will work with a stakeholders committee to create a
conceptual design for redeveloping the Sun Motors property as a solid waste transfer
station for Russell County.  Simultaneously, a Phase I Environmental Site
Assessment (ESA) will be conducted for the Sun Motors property. The Phase I ESA
involves a review of records, a site inspection, and interviews with owners, occupants,
neighbors and local government officials.  This will be conducted by Cardno, the
environmental consultant working with CDAC.  Phase II sampling and laboratory
analysis will not be conducted during this project.  If additional environmental
assessment assistance is needed, Cardno may be able to assist and provide
guidance on next steps.
 
The services that would be provided by CDAC for the conceptual redevelopment plan
and Cardno, the environmental consultant preparing the Phase I ESA, are valued at
$14,075. The services described in the attached proposal would be covered by
CDAC’s EPA Brownfields Assessment grant and provided at no-cost to Russell
County. The proposed project timeline is from 5/4/20 – 8/28/20.  No cash or in-
kind match is required.  However, it is still important for the County to track
stakeholder participation (such as through sign-in sheets at meetings) because
documented community input can be very important for future grant applications.
 
The grant requires that a stakeholders committee be set up for the project comprised
of key parties.  Examples for this project include the property owner, representative(s)
from the Russell County Board of Supervisors, the County’s solid waste collection
representative(s), and the Virginia Department of Transportation.  One person must
serve as the main point of contact for the project.
 
Attached is a proposal that outlines the scope of work, the timeline, and value of the
services.  If Russell County would like to accept the proposal and proceed with this

mailto:egilboy@vt.edu
mailto:lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us
mailto:design_printers@email.com
mailto:nproctor@vt.edu
mailto:joe.morici@cardno.com








1 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Sun, VA: Conceptual Redevelopment Plan for the  


Former Sun Motors Property  


 


 
 
 
 
 


Submitted to: 
Lonzo Lester, County Administrator 


Russell County 
 


137 Highland Drive  
Lebanon, VA 24266 


 
Phone: (276) 889-8000 


Fax: (276) 889-8011 
E-Mail: lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us 


 
April 21, 2020 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Submitted by: 
Elizabeth Gilboy, Director 


Nick Proctor, Project Manager 
Community Design Assistance Center 


101 South Main Street Suite 2, Blacksburg, VA 24061 
P: 540-231-5644 
F: 540-231-6089 


E: egilboy@vt.edu/nproctor@vt.edu 







2 


 


Introduction 
 
The Community Design Assistance Center (CDAC) of Virginia Tech received a U.S. 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Brownfields Assessment grant to assess and 
help communities develop conceptual redevelopment plans for potentially contaminated 
sites in southwest Virginia communities.  
 
The EPA Assessment Grant provides funding for CDAC to help communities determine 
if a site is contaminated (and if so, with what), and then to plan for the possible 
redevelopment of that site through conceptual design development.  EPA does not 
require or commit communities to any cleanup if the community participates in this 
process.   
   
EPA’s goals are to:  


- protect human health and the environment 
- sustain reuse 
- promote partnerships, and  
- strengthen the marketplace 


 
The EPA describes Brownfields as: 


“A brownfield is a property, the expansion, redevelopment, or reuse of which may 
be  complicated by the presence or potential presence of a hazardous 
substance, pollutant, or contaminant.”  


 
The purpose of this project is to work with a Stakeholders Committee to create a 
conceptual redevelopment plan for former Sun Motors property.    
 
A Phase I Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) will be conducted for this project which 
involves a review of records, a site inspection, and interviews with owners, occupants, 
neighbors and local government officials. Phase II sampling and laboratory analysis 
will not be conducted during this project.   
 
The grant requires that a Stakeholders Committee be set up for the project comprised of 
key parties. The CDAC strongly suggests involving the property owner, key individuals 
from the Russell County Board of Supervisors, the County’s solid waste collection 
department, and the Virginia Department of Transportation (VDOT). One person must 
serve as the main point of contact for the project. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







3 


 


Project Overview 
 
The Community Design Assistance Center will work with a stakeholders committee to 
create a conceptual redevelopment plan for the former Sun Motors auto repair 
property, located in Sun, VA. Sun is an unincorporated community in southwest 
Virginia along Route 63 between St Paul and Dante in Russell County. The 
conceptual redevelopment plan will primarily focus on redeveloping the property into 
a County-operated solid waste transfer station. The solid waste transfer station will 
provide collection facilities for solid waste, household trash, and recycling.  
 
 
Following is a list of initial design ideas/needs for the transfer station: 


 Attendant building 


o Single indoor room with climate control 


o Hand tool storage 


o Restroom 


 Parking for attendant’s personal vehicle 


 Access gate and perimeter fencing 


 Paved surfaces throughout portion of the site where vehicles/dumpsters are 


expected 


 Raised platform or lowered “pit” for trash collection bin so that patrons can 


dispose trash easier 


 Recycling bin 


 Trash compactor (will need high power input; potentially 3-phase) 


 Cardboard recycling receptacle 


 Hazardous material receptacle; waste oil, anti-freeze 


 Appropriate site ingress/egress from Route 63, developed in consultation with 


VDOT 


 Stream bank restoration; potential partners include: 


o The Nature Conservancy (TNC) 


o Appalachian Sustainable Development (ASD) 


o Clinch Valley Soil and Water Conservation District (Lebanon, VA) 


o Canaan Valley Institute 


 


 
Design Process 
 
Following is a list of anticipated steps for this project based on past experience with 
similar projects. 
 
Following is a list of general, anticipated steps CDAC envisions for this project. 


 


1. Project Start-up/ Information Gathering:  


The design team will gather GIS/mapping information about site. The CDAC 


team will need GIS information to create the maps from which to work.  Geo-data 


(GIS shape files) needed include: most recent aerials, contours/topo (2-5' 


intervals preferred), building footprints, parcels (ownership, private vs. public), 







4 


 


roads, sidewalks, hydrology, flood data, utilities, soil data, easements, wetlands, 


watersheds, karst, zoning, future land use, etc. 


 


Cardno, Virginia Tech’s environmental consultant working on the project, will take 


drone aerials and photos of the site, adjacent areas, and vehicular approaches 


from the north and south on Route 63. 


 


Develop base map(s). 


 


2. Stakeholder Input:  


The CDAC team will meet digitally via Zoom® with the Stakeholders Committee 


to hear about the project goals and ideas for the transfer station. The CDAC uses 


Zoom®, an online presentation platform with screen-share capabilities, for digital 


presentations. A computer with internet access, microphone, and speakers is 


required. It is recommended that the Stakeholders Committee include at least 


one person who has hands-on experience with day-today operations of transfer 


stations in Russell County as well as a representative from VDOT to provide 


input on the appropriate ingress/egress location(s) to the site. 


 


3. Develop Preliminary Conceptual Redevelopment Plans for the Former Sun 


Motors Property: 


The CDAC team will develop two preliminary conceptual redevelopment plan 


alternatives for the former Sun Motors property that indicates the locations of 


elements such as the entrance/exit, drop off areas, attendant building, etc.  


 


5. Virtual Presentation of Preliminary Conceptual Redevelopment Alternatives 


with the Stakeholders Committee:  


The CDAC team will virtually present the preliminary conceptual redevelopment 


plans to the Stakeholders Committee for feedback. The CDAC uses Zoom®, an 


online presentation platform with screen-share capabilities, for digital 


presentations. A computer with internet access, microphone, and speakers is 


required.  


 


6. Finalize Conceptual Redevelopment Plan: 


Based on feedback, the CDAC team will revise the preliminary conceptual 


redevelopment plans into a final conceptual redevelopment plan and prepare 


supporting drawings to help portray the essence and character of the transfer 


station area.  


 


7. Virtual Presentation of Final Conceptual Redevelopment Plan with the 


Stakeholders Committee:  


The CDAC team will present the final conceptual redevelopment plan and 


supporting drawings to the Stakeholders Committee. The CDAC uses Zoom®, an 


online presentation platform with screen-share capabilities, for digital 


presentations. A computer with internet access, microphone, and speakers is 


required. 







5 


 


Final Products1 
 
The Community Design Assistance Center will work with a Stakeholders Committee to 
develop the following deliverables: 
 


1. Conceptual Redevelopment Plan for the Sun Transfer Station 
The conceptual redevelopment plan will indicate generally what uses are 
happening where on the site. 
 


2. Supporting sketches: Up to Two 
Supporting sketches will help depict the proposed conceptual design and may 
include, in part, cross-sections, perspectives, and elevations. 
 


3. Final Report 
The final report will describe the design work and include reductions of designs. 
a) Final Report hard copies (3) 
b) Link to digital version of the report 


 
4. Phase I Environmental Assessment Executive Summary (provided by Cardno) 


 
5. Phase I Environmental Assessment (provided by Cardno) 


 
 


Estimated Tasks and Timeline2: 5/4/20 – 7/31/20; 13 weeks + 4 weeks no-cost time 
buffer = 8/31/20) 
 
 


Date Trip Tasks 


5/4/20 – 5/22 (3 wks)  Gather base map materials from Russell County, 


and/or other sources.3 


 


  Cardno coordinates drone aerials and photos of the 


site. 


   


  Digital meeting with Stakeholders Committee via 


Zoom® to discuss project goals/ideas for the transfer 


station and look at aerial images.   


 


  Note existing conditions and opportunities and 


constraints.   


 


  Prepare base map.  


                                                 
1 This work will be conceptual in nature and will not include any construction drawings or cost estimates. 


Products are to be used as a guide when working with the appropriate professional(s).  The CDAC cannot 
be held responsible for inappropriate use of design work. 


2 Timeline is dependent on student availability and timely receipt of Letter of Commitment (LOC). Project 
will not begin until a qualified student team is hired for the project.  Uncontrollable delays due to COVID-
19, weather, student team formation, receipt of LOC, or adjustments to the timeline may require an 
adjustment to the project start and/or end dates.   


3 Topographic information at 2-5’ contour intervals must be available through the Town, County, or other sources in 
order for the Design Center to carry out work as described in this proposal. 







6 


 


    


5/25 – 6/19 (4 wks)  Develop two preliminary conceptual plan alternatives 


for the transfer station. 


   


  Digitally present the preliminary conceptual 


redevelopment plan alternatives to the Stakeholders 


Committee via Zoom® for feedback. 
   


6/22 – 7/17 (4 wks)  Incorporate comments and refine conceptual 


redevelopment. 


 


  Digitally present final conceptual redevelopment to 


the Stakeholders Committee via Zoom® for 


feedback. 


 


7/20 – 7/31 (2 wks)  Make any final minor revisions to any products.   
 
  Mail drawing(s), final report, and Phase I 


Environmental Site Assessment and email links to 
digitals of all final products to Lonzo Lester, Russell 
County Administrator and Lou Wallace, Russell 
County Board of Supervisors. 


 


8/3 – 8/28 (4 wks)  No-cost time buffer to allow for scheduling changes. 


 


 


 
 
Total value of design services covered by the EPA Brownfields $9,075 
Assessment Grant through the Community Design 
Assistance Center at Virginia Tech.   
 
Phase I Assessment costs for Cardno’s work are also covered  
under the EPA Assessment grant and are valued at $5,000 $5,000 
Total Value of Services:  $14,075* 
 
 
 
*The services described in this proposal will be provided at no cost to Russell County. 
The Community Design Assistance Center at Virginia Tech received an Environmental 
Protection Agency (EPA) Brownfields Assessment grant to assess and help 
communities in southwest Virginia develop conceptual redevelopment plans for 
potentially contaminated sites.  
 
 






[bookmark: _GoBack]





Community letterhead



Date



Elizabeth Gilboy, Director

Community Design Assistance Center/Virginia Tech

101 S Main St (0450)

Blacksburg, VA  24060



Dear Ms. Gilboy,



Please accept this letter as confirmation that NAME OF ORGANIZATION understands that the Community Design Assistance Center (CDAC) at Virginia Tech received a grant from the U. S. Environmental Protection Agency’s (EPA) Brownfields Assessment grant program to assist communities in southwest Virginia assess and develop conceptual designs for the redevelopment of potentially contaminated sites.



As a community selected to receive CDAC’s services, we understand that there is no charge for the services and no cash or in-kind match requirement on the part of NAME OF ORGANIZATION.  We also understand that our obligation will be to establish a Stakeholders Committee comprised of the appropriate officials that will provide input to help develop the design concept and that serve as the voice of the community.  The list of those on the Stakeholders Committee will be sent to CDAC prior to the start of any work.  We will also identify a point of contact who will serve as the main point of contact for both CDAC and Cardno.



NAME OF ORGANIZATION accepts the services of CDAC (estimated at $xx,xxx) and of Cardno (also no cost).





Sincerely,





NAME

TITLE 



project:
- Send a Letter of Commitment accepting the assistance of CDAC and Cardno
through the EPA Brownfields Assessment grant at your earliest convenience. 
Attached is a sample Letter of Commitment that can be used as a template on the
appropriate organization letterhead. 
- Let me know who will serve as the main point of contact in Russell County for the
project.
 
On behalf of CDAC and the Cardno team, we look forward to working with you!

Elizabeth

Elizabeth Gilboy, Director
Community Design Assistance Center/Virginia Tech
101 S. Main St (0450)
Blacksburg, VA  24060
540-231-5644 (p)
540-231-6089 (f)





1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Sun, VA: Conceptual Redevelopment Plan for the  
Former Sun Motors Property  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Submitted to: 
Lonzo Lester, County Administrator 

Russell County 
 

137 Highland Drive  
Lebanon, VA 24266 

 
Phone: (276) 889-8000 

Fax: (276) 889-8011 
E-Mail: lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us 

 
April 21, 2020 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Submitted by: 
Elizabeth Gilboy, Director 

Nick Proctor, Project Manager 
Community Design Assistance Center 

101 South Main Street Suite 2, Blacksburg, VA 24061 
P: 540-231-5644 
F: 540-231-6089 

E: egilboy@vt.edu/nproctor@vt.edu 



2 
 

Introduction 
 
The Community Design Assistance Center (CDAC) of Virginia Tech received a U.S. 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Brownfields Assessment grant to assess and 
help communities develop conceptual redevelopment plans for potentially contaminated 
sites in southwest Virginia communities.  
 
The EPA Assessment Grant provides funding for CDAC to help communities determine 
if a site is contaminated (and if so, with what), and then to plan for the possible 
redevelopment of that site through conceptual design development.  EPA does not 
require or commit communities to any cleanup if the community participates in this 
process.   
   
EPA’s goals are to:  

- protect human health and the environment 
- sustain reuse 
- promote partnerships, and  
- strengthen the marketplace 

 
The EPA describes Brownfields as: 

“A brownfield is a property, the expansion, redevelopment, or reuse of which may 
be  complicated by the presence or potential presence of a hazardous 
substance, pollutant, or contaminant.”  

 
The purpose of this project is to work with a Stakeholders Committee to create a 
conceptual redevelopment plan for former Sun Motors property.    
 
A Phase I Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) will be conducted for this project which 
involves a review of records, a site inspection, and interviews with owners, occupants, 
neighbors and local government officials. Phase II sampling and laboratory analysis 
will not be conducted during this project.   
 
The grant requires that a Stakeholders Committee be set up for the project comprised of 
key parties. The CDAC strongly suggests involving the property owner, key individuals 
from the Russell County Board of Supervisors, the County’s solid waste collection 
department, and the Virginia Department of Transportation (VDOT). One person must 
serve as the main point of contact for the project. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3 
 

Project Overview 
 
The Community Design Assistance Center will work with a stakeholders committee to 
create a conceptual redevelopment plan for the former Sun Motors auto repair 
property, located in Sun, VA. Sun is an unincorporated community in southwest 
Virginia along Route 63 between St Paul and Dante in Russell County. The 
conceptual redevelopment plan will primarily focus on redeveloping the property into 
a County-operated solid waste transfer station. The solid waste transfer station will 
provide collection facilities for solid waste, household trash, and recycling.  
 
 
Following is a list of initial design ideas/needs for the transfer station: 

 Attendant building 
o Single indoor room with climate control 
o Hand tool storage 
o Restroom 

 Parking for attendant’s personal vehicle 
 Access gate and perimeter fencing 
 Paved surfaces throughout portion of the site where vehicles/dumpsters are 

expected 
 Raised platform or lowered “pit” for trash collection bin so that patrons can 

dispose trash easier 
 Recycling bin 
 Trash compactor (will need high power input; potentially 3-phase) 
 Cardboard recycling receptacle 
 Hazardous material receptacle; waste oil, anti-freeze 
 Appropriate site ingress/egress from Route 63, developed in consultation with 

VDOT 
 Stream bank restoration; potential partners include: 

o The Nature Conservancy (TNC) 
o Appalachian Sustainable Development (ASD) 
o Clinch Valley Soil and Water Conservation District (Lebanon, VA) 
o Canaan Valley Institute 

 
 
Design Process 
 
Following is a list of anticipated steps for this project based on past experience with 
similar projects. 
 
Following is a list of general, anticipated steps CDAC envisions for this project. 
 

1. Project Start-up/ Information Gathering:  
The design team will gather GIS/mapping information about site. The CDAC 
team will need GIS information to create the maps from which to work.  Geo-data 
(GIS shape files) needed include: most recent aerials, contours/topo (2-5' 
intervals preferred), building footprints, parcels (ownership, private vs. public), 



4 
 

roads, sidewalks, hydrology, flood data, utilities, soil data, easements, wetlands, 
watersheds, karst, zoning, future land use, etc. 
 
Cardno, Virginia Tech’s environmental consultant working on the project, will take 
drone aerials and photos of the site, adjacent areas, and vehicular approaches 
from the north and south on Route 63. 
 
Develop base map(s). 

 
2. Stakeholder Input:  

The CDAC team will meet digitally via Zoom® with the Stakeholders Committee 
to hear about the project goals and ideas for the transfer station. The CDAC uses 
Zoom®, an online presentation platform with screen-share capabilities, for digital 
presentations. A computer with internet access, microphone, and speakers is 
required. It is recommended that the Stakeholders Committee include at least 
one person who has hands-on experience with day-today operations of transfer 
stations in Russell County as well as a representative from VDOT to provide 
input on the appropriate ingress/egress location(s) to the site. 
 

3. Develop Preliminary Conceptual Redevelopment Plans for the Former Sun 
Motors Property: 
The CDAC team will develop two preliminary conceptual redevelopment plan 
alternatives for the former Sun Motors property that indicates the locations of 
elements such as the entrance/exit, drop off areas, attendant building, etc.  
 

5. Virtual Presentation of Preliminary Conceptual Redevelopment Alternatives 
with the Stakeholders Committee:  
The CDAC team will virtually present the preliminary conceptual redevelopment 
plans to the Stakeholders Committee for feedback. The CDAC uses Zoom®, an 
online presentation platform with screen-share capabilities, for digital 
presentations. A computer with internet access, microphone, and speakers is 
required.  

 
6. Finalize Conceptual Redevelopment Plan: 

Based on feedback, the CDAC team will revise the preliminary conceptual 
redevelopment plans into a final conceptual redevelopment plan and prepare 
supporting drawings to help portray the essence and character of the transfer 
station area.  

 
7. Virtual Presentation of Final Conceptual Redevelopment Plan with the 

Stakeholders Committee:  
The CDAC team will present the final conceptual redevelopment plan and 
supporting drawings to the Stakeholders Committee. The CDAC uses Zoom®, an 
online presentation platform with screen-share capabilities, for digital 
presentations. A computer with internet access, microphone, and speakers is 
required. 



5 
 

Final Products1 
 
The Community Design Assistance Center will work with a Stakeholders Committee to 
develop the following deliverables: 
 

1. Conceptual Redevelopment Plan for the Sun Transfer Station 
The conceptual redevelopment plan will indicate generally what uses are 
happening where on the site. 
 

2. Supporting sketches: Up to Two 
Supporting sketches will help depict the proposed conceptual design and may 
include, in part, cross-sections, perspectives, and elevations. 
 

3. Final Report 
The final report will describe the design work and include reductions of designs. 
a) Final Report hard copies (3) 
b) Link to digital version of the report 

 
4. Phase I Environmental Assessment Executive Summary (provided by Cardno) 

 
5. Phase I Environmental Assessment (provided by Cardno) 

 
 
Estimated Tasks and Timeline2: 5/4/20 – 7/31/20; 13 weeks + 4 weeks no-cost time 
buffer = 8/31/20) 
 
 
Date Trip Tasks 
5/4/20 – 5/22 (3 wks)  Gather base map materials from Russell County, 

and/or other sources.3 
 
  Cardno coordinates drone aerials and photos of the 

site. 
   
  Digital meeting with Stakeholders Committee via 

Zoom® to discuss project goals/ideas for the transfer 
station and look at aerial images.   

 
  Note existing conditions and opportunities and 

constraints.   
 
  Prepare base map.  
                                                 
1 This work will be conceptual in nature and will not include any construction drawings or cost estimates. 

Products are to be used as a guide when working with the appropriate professional(s).  The CDAC cannot 
be held responsible for inappropriate use of design work. 

2 Timeline is dependent on student availability and timely receipt of Letter of Commitment (LOC). Project 
will not begin until a qualified student team is hired for the project.  Uncontrollable delays due to COVID-
19, weather, student team formation, receipt of LOC, or adjustments to the timeline may require an 
adjustment to the project start and/or end dates.   

3 Topographic information at 2-5’ contour intervals must be available through the Town, County, or other sources in 
order for the Design Center to carry out work as described in this proposal. 



6 
 

    
5/25 – 6/19 (4 wks)  Develop two preliminary conceptual plan alternatives 

for the transfer station. 
   
  Digitally present the preliminary conceptual 

redevelopment plan alternatives to the Stakeholders 
Committee via Zoom® for feedback. 

   
6/22 – 7/17 (4 wks)  Incorporate comments and refine conceptual 

redevelopment. 
 
  Digitally present final conceptual redevelopment to 

the Stakeholders Committee via Zoom® for 
feedback. 

 
7/20 – 7/31 (2 wks)  Make any final minor revisions to any products.   
 
  Mail drawing(s), final report, and Phase I 

Environmental Site Assessment and email links to 
digitals of all final products to Lonzo Lester, Russell 
County Administrator and Lou Wallace, Russell 
County Board of Supervisors. 

 
8/3 – 8/28 (4 wks)  No-cost time buffer to allow for scheduling changes. 
 
 
 
 
Total value of design services covered by the EPA Brownfields $9,075 
Assessment Grant through the Community Design 
Assistance Center at Virginia Tech.   
 
Phase I Assessment costs for Cardno’s work are also covered  
under the EPA Assessment grant and are valued at $5,000 $5,000 
Total Value of Services:  $14,075* 
 
 
 
*The services described in this proposal will be provided at no cost to Russell County. 
The Community Design Assistance Center at Virginia Tech received an Environmental 
Protection Agency (EPA) Brownfields Assessment grant to assess and help 
communities in southwest Virginia develop conceptual redevelopment plans for 
potentially contaminated sites.  
 
 



































 

 

 

RUSSELL COUNTY 
Board of Supervisors 
137 Highlands Drive 

Lebanon, Virginia 24266 
 

 

RFP Issued:  February 19, 2020 
 

RFP 005-2020 

Lebanon Elementary School Wall Repair Project 

Pre-Bid Meeting: A MANDATORY Pre-Bid Meeting 
was held on February 27, 2020 at 10:00 a.m. at the 

Lebanon Elementary School, Lebanon, Va. 
 

Due Date:  March 6, 2020 / Time: 3:00 p.m. 
Opening Date:  March 6, 2020 / Time: 3:00 p.m. 

 
Receipt Location:   

Office of the County Administrator 
137 Highlands Drive, Lebanon, VA 24266 

 
 

INVITATION FOR BID PREPARED BY: 
Name:  Lonzo Lester  
Title:  County Administrator 
Telephone:  (276) 889-8000 
Fax: (276) 889-8011 
Email:  lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Contract with General Terms and Conditions 

 

 

CONTRACT AND GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

COUNTY OF RUSSELL VIRGINIA  
AND 

KEN CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, INC. 
 

DESIGN-BUILD CONSTRUCTION  
OF THE  

LEBANON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL  
WALL REPAIR PROJECT 

 
 
THIS CONTRACT, on this 4th day of May, 2020, by and between the County of Russell,  Virginia,  a  political 
subdivision of  the  Commonwealth  of  Virginia  (hereinafter,  the  “County”)  and Ken Construction Company, 
Inc.,  a  Virginia business having  a  place  of  business  at 3966 Cross Roads, Lebanon, VA 24266, hereinafter,  
the “Contractor”). 
 
It is mutually understood and agreed that the entire contents of Request For Proposal (RFP) 005-2020 Design-
Build Construction of the Lebanon Elementary School Wall Repair Project’s General Terms and Conditions of 
Contract (General, Special, and Other Conditions as they may be titled) and all Contractor documents submitted in 
response to the RFP are incorporated herein by reference the same if each had been fully set out and attached hereto. 

 
WITNESSETH, that the County and the Contractor, for the considerations hereinafter named, agree as follows: 

 
SECTION 1.  SCOPE OF WORK 

 

Contractor shall perform services as specified in RFP 005-2020, which is a certain Proposal of Contractor which is 
attached hereto and made a part of this Contract by reference, as if repeated verbatim herein.  In the event that a conflict 
exists between the referenced Proposal of Contractor and the general terms and conditions of this Contract, the 
general terms and conditions of this Contract shall govern and supersede any such conflicting terms of the proposal. 
The Contractor further agrees it will furnish all Labor, Equipment, and Material necessary to perform all Work in 
accordance with the requirements and provisions of the Contract as defined in the General Terms and Conditions. 
 
The Contractor shall submit final construction plans by a Professional Engineer/Structural Engineer and deliver to the 
County Administrator before final award of the project contract.  In addition, the project shall be continuously inspected 
by a Professional Engineer/Structural Engineer during all construction phases and engineering reports provided to the 
County.    
 

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
 

SECTION 2. TIME OF COMPLETION 
 

A. The Work to be performed under this Contract shall be commenced within fourteen (14) Calendar Days 
after receipt of Written Notice to Proceed. The Work shall be completed within (80) Calendar Days after 
receipt of Notice to Proceed. 

 
B. Failure to complete the Work, within the number of Calendar Days stated in this Section, including 

extension(s) granted thereto, shall result in Liquidated Damages as set forth below. 
 

C. The County and Contractor hereinafter referred to as (the “Parties”) agree that time is of the essence and 
the County  will  be  substantially  damaged  in  amounts  that  will  be  difficult  or  impossible  to  
determine  if  substantial completion of the Project is not achieved within  (80) Calendar Days. 



Contract with General Terms and Conditions 

 

 

 
Therefore, the Parties have agreed on sums which the Parties agree are reasonable as Liquidated Damages 
for such occurrences. It is further understood and agreed that the payment of the liquidated damage is in 
lieu of actual damages for such occurrences. The Contractor hereby waives any defense as to the validity 
of any Liquidated Damages stated in this Contract as it may appear on the grounds that such Liquidated  

 
Damages are void as penalties or are not reasonably related to actual damages. The Contractor shall be 
liable for ($500.00) Dollars Per Day for every Calendar Day after expiration of the Contract Time that the 
Project is not substantially completed. 

 
SECTION 3.  CONSIDERATION / PROVISION OF SSN OR FIN 

 

A. In consideration of the Work to be performed by Contractor, as set forth under Section 1, entitled Scope of 
Work, the County agrees to pay Contractor the total sum of  $571,911. 

 
B. To obtain payment for Work performed under this Contract, the Contractor shall provide their social security 

numbers and proprietorships, partnerships, and Corporations shall provide its Federal Identification Number. 
 

SECTION 4.  CHANGE IN SCOPE OF WORK 
 

It is understood that, during the course of construction, changes in the Scope of Work may be necessary as 
covered in the General Terms and Conditions. 

 
A. Changes in the Scope of Work which affect the Contract price or Extra Work shall require a formal written 

Change Order before Work proceeds. Changes affecting cost and/or Extra Work shall be performed at 
mutually agreed-upon unit prices, or on a lump sum basis. The Contractor shall be prepared to justify any 
price for Extra Work by providing detailed breakdown and supporting documents when requested by the 
County. 

 
B. Changes in the Scope of Work affecting Contract cost or Extra Work shall be performed only after receipt 

of a formal written modification to the Contract and Change Work Order. Any Work performed prior to 
receipt of such formal written modification shall be done at the Contractor’s risk. 

 
SECTION 5.  SCHEDULE OF PAYMENT 

 

A. The following Schedule of Payment shall be followed: 
 

(a) Such payment shall be subject to retainage as defined in the General Conditions, Acceptance, and 
Final Payment. 

 
1. After the first of each month, Contractor may present to the County an invoice covering the 

total quantity of Work that has been completed from the start of the job up to and including the 
last Day of the preceding month, and the value of the Work so completed as determined 
in accordance with the schedule of measurement and values established for the Contract. The 
monthly invoice also may include any allowance for the cost of such Materials and 
Equipment required in the permanent Work as have been delivered to the site but not yet 
incorporated in the Work. However, any such allowance shall not be included on the monthly 
invoice unless the Contractor has received prior approval from the County. 

 
Receiving payment from the County for Material stored on site does not in any manner relieve 
Contractor of either its responsibility to properly protect the Material or its sole liability to 
replace Material damaged or stolen. Payment by the County shall not be evidence that the 
County either approves Material as suitable for the Work intended, or that the County 
accepts any liability for the safe storage and protection of the Material or its replacement if 
damaged or stolen. 

 



Contract with General Terms and Conditions 

 

 

 
The County reserves the right to request additional documentation from the Contractor to 
support any request for payment. 

 
2. After determining the accuracy of monthly invoices, and after deducting previous payments 

made, the County shall pay to the Contractor ninety-five percent (95%) of the amount of  
 
the approved invoice. The five percent (5%) retained percentage shall be held by the 
County until the Work is complete. 

 
3. The County shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) Days from the date each 

invoice is received by the County. 
 

Within ten (10) Days after receipt of the invoice, the County shall notify the Contractor of 
any defect or impropriety which would prevent payment within the thirty (30) Day limit. 

 
SECTION 6. OBLIGATION TO SUBCONTRACTOR 

 

A. Within seven (7) Days after receipt of amounts paid to the Contractor by the County, the Contractor shall 
take one of two steps relating to Work performed by the Subcontractor. 

 
1. Pay the Subcontractor for the proportionate share of the total payment received from the County 

attributable to the Work performed by the Subcontractor under the Contract; or 
 

2. Notify the County and the Subcontractor, in writing, of intention to withhold all or a part of the 
Subcontractor’s payment with the reason for nonpayment. 

 
B. The Contractor’s obligation to pay a Subcontractor pursuant to the payment clause in this section shall not be 

construed to be an obligation of the County.  
 

The  Contractor  shall  require each  Subcontractor  to  include  or  otherwise  be  subject to  the  same 
payment requirements with respect to each lower-tier Subcontractor. 

 
SECTION 7. COMPLIANCE WITH ALL LAWS/FOREIGN AND DOMESTIC BUSINESSES -  
              AUTHORITY TO TRANSACT BUSINESS IN THE STATE AND COMPLIANCE WITH 

FEDERAL IMMIGRATION LAW 
 

A. Compliance with All Laws: 
 

Contractor shall comply with all federal, State, and local statutes, ordinances, and regulations now in effect 
or hereafter adopted, in the performance of the Scope Work set forth herein. Contractor represents 
that it possesses all necessary licenses and permits required to conduct its business and will acquire any 
additional licenses and permits necessary for performance of this Contract, for example, building, 
demolition, and/or land disturbance permits, prior to the initiation of Work. 

 
B. Foreign and Domestic Businesses-Authority to Transact Business in the State: 

 

Contractor, whether organized as a stock or non-stock corporation, limited liability company, business trust, 
or limited partnership, or registered as a registered limited liability partnership, shall be authorized to 
transact business in the State as a domestic or foreign Business entity and shall provide proof thereof. 
Contractor shall not allow its existence to lapse or its certificate of authority or registration to transact 
business in the State to be revoked or cancelled at any time during the term of the Contract. The Contractor’s 
failure to remain in compliance with the provisions of this section shall be deemed a material breach of this 
Contract. 

 
C. During the performance of the Contract, Contractor certifies it does not and shall not knowingly 

employ an unauthorized alien as defined in the Federal Immigration Reform and Control Act. 



Contract with General Terms and Conditions 

 

 

 
SECTION 8. APPLICABLE LAW / VENUE 

 

A. Applicable Law: 
 

This Contract shall be deemed to be a Virginia Contract and shall be governed as to all matters whether 
 

of validity, interpretations, obligations, performance or otherwise exclusively by the laws of the 
Commonwealth of Virginia, and all questions arising with respect thereto shall be determined in 
accordance with such laws. Regardless of where actually delivered and accepted, this Contract shall be 
deemed to have been delivered and accepted by the parties in the Commonwealth of Virginia. 

 

B. Venue: 
 

Any and all suits for any Claims or for any and every breach or dispute arising out of this Contract 
shall be maintained in the appropriate court of competent jurisdiction in the County of Russell, Virginia. 

 
SECTION 9. NONDISCRIMINATION 

 

A. Employment discrimination by Contractor is prohibited.  During the performance of this Agreement, 
Contractor agrees as follows: 

 
1. The Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment  

because of race, religion, color, sex, national origin, age, disability, or any other basis prohibited 
by State law relating to discrimination in employment, except where there is a bona fide 
occupational qualification reasonably necessary to the normal operation of Contractor. The 
Contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for 
employment, notices setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause. 

 
2. The Contractor, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on its behalf, shall 

state that Contractor is an equal opportunity employer. 
 

3. Notices, advertisements, and solicitations placed in accordance with federal law, rule, or 
regulation shall be deemed sufficient for the purpose of meeting the requirements of this 
section. 

 
SECTION 10.  DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE PROVISIONS 

 

1. During the performance of this Contract, the Contractor agrees to (i) provide a drug-free workplace 
for the Contractor’s employees; (ii) post in conspicuous places, available to employees and 
applicants for employment, a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, sale, 
distribution, dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance or marijuana is prohibited 
in the Contractor’s workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for 
violations of such prohibition; (iii) state in all solicitations or advertisements for employees 
placed by or on behalf of the Contractor that the Contractor maintains a drug-free workplace. 

 
2. For the purposes of this section, “drug-free workplace” means a site for the performance of work 

done in connection with a specific Contract awarded to a Contractor in accordance with this 
contract, the employees of who are prohibited from engaging in the unlawful  
manufacture, sale, distribution, dispensation, possession, or use of any controlled substance or 
marijuana during the performance of the Contract. 

 
SECTION 11. NON-ASSIGNMENT CLAUSE 

 

Contractor shall not assign its rights and duties under this Contract without the prior written consent of 
the County. 



Contract with General Terms and Conditions 

 

 

 
SECTION 12.  ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATION 

 

Any costs or expenses associated with environmentally related violations of the law, the creation or 
maintenance of a nuisance, or releases of hazardous substances, including, but not limited to, the 
costs of any cleanup activities, removals, remediation, responses, damages, fines, administrative 
or civil penalties, or charges imposed on the Contractor, whether because of actions or suits by 
any governmental or regulatory agency or by any private party, as a result of the storage, 
accumulation, or release of any hazardous substances, or any noncompliance with or failure to meet 
any federal, State or local standards, requirements, laws, statutes, regulations or the law of nuisance 
by Contractor (or by its agents, officers, employees, Subcontractors, consultants, sub consultants, or 
any other persons, Corporations or legal entities employed, utilized, or retained by Contractor) in 
the performance of this Contract or related activities, shall be paid by Contractor. This paragraph shall 
survive the termination, cancellation or expiration of this Contract. 

 
SECTION 13. FAITH BASED NON-DISCRIMINATION 

 

The County of Russell does not discriminate against faith-based organizations at that term is defined 
in Virginia Code Section 2.2-4343.1. 

 
SECTION 14. FORMAL CORRESPONDENCE / REPRESENTATIVES AND NOTICES 

 

Any notice, demand, or request by or made pursuant to this Contract shall be deemed properly made 
if personally delivered in writing or sent by the Parties in the United States mail, postage paid, to 
the representative specified below or as otherwise designated in writing and mutually agreed. 

 
The County Administrator shall be (name and title of representative goes here): All formal 
correspondence from Contractor to County shall be addressed to:   
Lonzo Lester 
County Administrator 
County of Russell 
137 Highlands Drive 
Lebanon, Virginia 24266 

 

The Contractor’s representation shall be (name and title of representative goes here):  All formal 
correspondence from the County to the Contractor shall be addressed to: 

 
Ken Construction Company, Inc. 

 

  3966 Cross Roads 
 

  Lebanon, VA 24266 
 

 
Nothing contained in this Section shall be construed to restrict the transmission of routine 
communications between representatives of the County and Contractor. 

 
SECTION 15.  ENTIRE AGREEMENT AND MODIFICATIONS 

 

A. The Contract shall be signed in triplicate by the County and the Contractor. 
 

B. The Contract Documents shall be the whole and entire agreement between the County and the 
Contractor, and cannot be modified, altered, or amended except in writing and signed by the Parties. 
No agreements, verbal or written, shall be interpreted as a change or modification to this Contract. 

 
C. Formal, written modifications shall be the only method used to change the Contract between the 

County and the Contractor. Any change order otherwise issued and accepted by the Contractor 
 



Contract with General Terms and Conditions 

 

 

 
is so accepted by the Contractor at its own risk. Any Extra Work performed by the Contractor 
subsequent to such acceptance is also at the Contractor’s own risk. 

 
D. Formal written communications proposing to change scope of Work, terms and conditions, cost of 

Contract, shall be addressed as specified in Contract. 
 

E. The Contract Documents are complementary and what is called for by one shall be as binding as if 
called for by all. 

 
F. If any provision of this Contract is found by any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or 

unenforceable, the invalidity of such provision shall not affect the other provisions of this Contract, 
and all other provisions of this Contract shall remain in force and effect. 

 
SECTION 16.  CORRELATION OF DOCUMENTS 

 

The Contractor will furnish to the County, free of charge, copies of Drawings and/or Specifications reasonably 
necessary for the execution of the Work. 

 
The Contractor will be responsible for the adequacy of design and sufficiency of the Drawings and/or 
Specifications, issuing, if necessary, addendum to clarify the Work. However, when the Work involved is that 
common to a trade or industry, which may be judged as acceptable, or not by commonly accepted standards for 
a specific trade, the Contractor shall not use the inadequacy or omission of Drawing detail or Specification language 
to excuse its failure to perform to the highest industry standards. All Drawings and/or Specifications shall remain 
the property of the County. 

 
SECTION 17.  ACCESS TO WORK SITE 

 

The County shall provide access to the site upon which the Work under this Contract is to be done and to such 
other areas which are designated for use by the Contractor. 

 
SECTION 18.   WORK SITE CONDITIONS/DISCREPANCIES 

 

The Contractor, by careful examination, shall satisfy itself as to the nature and location of the Work, the character of 
Equipment and facilities needed preliminarily to and during prosecution of the Work, the general and local conditions, 
and all other matters which may in any way affect the Work under this Contract. 

 
If the Contractor finds any discrepancy between the Drawings and/or Specifications and the physical conditions of 
the Work site, or any errors or omissions in Drawings and/or Specifications, it immediately shall inform the County 
Administrator in writing, and the County Administrator promptly shall verify the same. Any Work done after such 
discovery, until authorized, will be done at the Contractor’s risk except in the event of an emergency. 

 
SECTION 19.  CHANGED CONDITIONS 

 

During the course of the Work and before such conditions are disturbed, except in the event of any emergency, the 
Contractor promptly shall notify the County Administrator in writing of previously unknown conditions at the Work 
site, differing materially from those ordinarily encountered and which prevent the proper execution of the Work 
of the character provided for in this Contract. The County Administrator promptly shall investigate the conditions; 
and if he finds that such conditions materially differ and cause an increase or decrease in the cost of, or the time 
required for, performance of this Contract, an equitable Adjustment shall be made and the Contract formally 
modified accordingly. Any Claim of the Contractor for Adjustment hereunder shall not be allowed unless it has given 
notice as required above and the Contract has been formally modified. 

 
SECTION 20.  MATERIAL AND APPLIANCES 

 

Unless otherwise stipulated, the Contractor shall provide and pay for all materials, labor, water, tools, equipment, 



Contract with General Terms and Conditions 

 

 

 
light, power, transportation, and other facilities of a quantity and quality necessary for the execution and completion 
of the Work. If required, the Contractor shall furnish satisfactory evidence as to the kind and quality of Materials. 

 
The Contractor promptly shall notify the County Administrator in writing if any change in materials as specified 
is contemplated or proposed. Any such proposed change shall be investigated promptly, and if found to be necessary 
and/or acceptable, the Contract shall be modified formally. Any change in materials shall be made at the Contractor’s 
own risk unless approved as prescribed above. 

 
SECTION 21.   PERMITS, UTILITY FEES, AND BUSINESS LICENSE 

 

Utility fees of a temporary nature necessary for the prosecution of the Work shall be secured and paid for by the 
Contractor. Utility fees for permanent Structures or permanent changes in existing facilities shall be secured and 
paid for by the County unless otherwise specified. 

 
Permits (building, plumbing, mechanical, and electrical) shall be obtained from the Building Inspection prior to 
performance of Work. No permit fee will be charged for County-owned property. However, fees will be charged 
for all other publicly owned property. 

 
Contractor shall comply with business license requirements on all publicly owned Projects. 

 
SECTION 22.  ROYALTIES AND PATENTS 

 

The Contractor shall pay all applicable royalties and license fees. It shall defend all suits or Claims for infringement 
of any patent rights and save harmless the County from loss on account thereof except that the County shall be 
responsible for any such loss when a particular process, design, or the product of a particular manufacturer or 
manufacturers is specified, unless the County has notified the Contractor prior to the signing of the Contract that 
the particular process, design, or product is patented or is believed to be patented. 

 
SECTION 23. SUPERINTENDENCE 

 

The Contractor shall always keep assigned to the Project  during its progress, a representative who shall represent 
the Contractor and have authority to make decisions in day-to-day activities. 

 
SECTION 24. EMPLOYEES 

 

At all times, the Contractor shall enforce proper discipline and order among its employees and shall seek to avoid 
employing on the Work any unfit person or anyone not skilled in the Work assigned to him. Adequate sanitary 
facilities shall be provided by the Contractor. The Contractor shall be responsible for complying with all OSHA 
requirements. 

 
SECTION 25.  APPLICABLE FEDERAL, STATE, AND LOCAL RESPONSIBILITIES 

 

The Contractor shall keep itself fully informed of all applicable federal, State, and local ordinances, regulations, and 
laws. It shall always observe and comply with said ordinances, regulations, and laws. It further shall post all notices 
to the public and employees as required. 

 
SECTION 26.   PROTECTION OF THE PUBLIC AND OF WORK AND PROPERTY 

 

The Contractor shall provide and maintain all necessary barricades, and signage in accordance with requirements of 
the Building Inspector and take all reasonable precautions for the protection and safety of the public. It continuously 
shall maintain reasonable protection of all Work from damage and shall take all reasonable precautions to protect 
property from injury or loss arising in connection with this Contract. The Contractor shall take reasonable 
precautions to protect private property adjacent to the Project from such nuisances as debris and excessive noise. 
It shall make good any damage, injury, or loss to its Work and to the Property or the County resulting from lack of 
reasonable protective precautions except such as may be caused by agents or employees of the County. 



Contract with General Terms and Conditions 

 

 

 
SECTION 27.   EMERGENCY WORK 

 

If a situation affects the safety of life, the Work, or adjoining property, without special instructions or authorization 
from the County Administrator, the Contractor is permitted to act at its discretion to prevent such threatening loss 
or injury. It also shall act, without appeal, if the County Administrator so authorizes or instructs. Any 
compensation claimed by the Contractor for emergency work shall be negotiated and approved by the County in 
writing. 

 
SECTION 28.   SUBCONTRACTS 

 

As soon as practicable after signing the Contract, but in any event prior to the performance of any Work on the 
Project, the Contractor shall notify the County in writing of the names of Subcontractors proposed for the Work, 
designating the portions of Work to be performed by each. This list shall include the estimated dollar amount with 
each and identify those Firms who are defined as a Minority Business Enterprise, Small Business Enterprise, 
and Woman-Owned Enterprise. 

 
A Minority Business Enterprise (MBE) is a Business that is owned and controlled by one or more socially and 
economically disadvantaged persons. Such disadvantage may arise from cultural, racial, chronic economic 
circumstances or background, or other similar cause. An MBE is at least fifty-one percent (51%) owned and 
controlled by one or more such disadvantaged persons. In the case of publicly owned companies, at least fifty-one 
percent (51%) of its voting stock must be owned and controlled by minorities or members of other groups. 
Additionally, the management and daily business operations must be controlled by one or more such individuals. 

 

“Minority” means any African American, Hispanic American, Native American or Alaskan and/or Aleut native, 
Asian, or a person of Pacific Island descent who is either a citizen of the United States or a permanent resident. 
Members of other groups means all other individuals found to be socially disadvantaged by the United States Small 
Business Administration under Section 8(a) of the Small Business Act, 15 U.S.C. § 637(a). 

 
The Contractor agrees that it is as fully responsible for the acts and omissions of its Subcontractors and of persons 
either directly or indirectly employed by it, as it is for the acts and omissions of persons directly employed by it. 

 
Nothing contained in the Contract Documents shall create any Contractual relation between any Subcontractor and 
the County. 

 
SECTION 29.   ORDER OF COMPLETION 

 

The Contractor shall submit, as soon as practical after Award of Contract, a schedule which shall show the order 
(and value of) in which the Contractor proposes to carry on the Work, with dates at which the Contractor will start 
the several parts of the Work, and estimated dates of completion of the several parts. The schedule of values, once 
approved by County, shall be the basis for submittal and approval of monthly progress payments. 

 
SECTION 30.   SEPARATE CONTRACTS 

 

The County reserves the right to allow other Contractors to provide goods or perform services in connection with 
the Project. The Contractor shall afford other Contractors reasonable opportunity for the introduction and storage 
of Materials and the execution of Work and properly shall connect and coordinate its Work with theirs. If the proper 
execution or results of any part of the Contractor’s Work depends upon the Work of any other Contractors, the 
Contractor shall inspect and promptly report to the County Administrator any defects in such Work that render 
it unsuitable for such proper execution and results. 

 
SECTION 31.  COUNTY STAFF STATUS  

 

The County Staff always shall have access to the Work whenever it is in preparation or progress, and the Contractor 
shall provide proper facilities for such access and for inspection. 

 
 



Contract with General Terms and Conditions 

 

 

 
The Building Inspector shall perform inspection of the Work. He has authority to stop the Work whenever such 
stoppage may be necessary to insure the proper execution of the Contract. He also shall have authority to reject all  
Work and Materials which do not conform to the Contract and to decide questions which arise in the execution of the 
Work. 

 
Notwithstanding such inspection, the Contractor will be held responsible for the acceptability of the finished Work. 
If the Specifications, the Building Inspector’s instructions, laws, ordinances, or any public authority require any Work 
to be specially tested or approved, the Contractor shall give the Building Inspector timely notice to its readiness for 
inspection, and if the inspection is by an authority other than the County, of the date fixed for such inspection. If any 
Work required to be inspected should be covered without proper approval or consent, if required, it must be 
uncovered for examination and professionally restored at the Contractor’s expense. 

 
Reexamination of any Work may be ordered, and if so ordered, the Work must be uncovered by the Contractor. If 
such Work is found to be in accordance with the Contract, the County shall pay the cost of reexamination 
and replacement.  If such Work is not in accordance with the Contract, the Contractor shall pay such cost. 
 
The Building Inspector’s presence and actions do not replace the legal requirements of the State and/or local building 
codes. Notwithstanding the Building Inspector’s actions or instructions, the Contractor shall adhere to all building 
code requirements regarding inspection and approvals. 

 
Whenever Work being done by the County’s forces, Utility companies, or by other Contractors’ forces is contiguous 
to Work covered by this Contract, the respective rights of the various interests involved shall be established by 
the County Administrator to secure the completion of the various portions of the Work in general harmony. 

 
Within a reasonable time after presentation to him, the Building Inspector shall make decisions in writing on all 
matters relating to the execution and progress of the Work or the interpretation of the Specifications and/or drawings. 

 
In making these decisions, the Building Inspector shall have authority to make interpretations and minor changes as to 
the scope of Work not involving extra cost, and not inconsistent with the purpose of the Work. If the Contractor 
claims that any such instructions involve extra cost, it shall give written notice thereof within ten (10) Days, after the 
receipt of such instruction. Except in an emergency endangering life and/or property, the County shall accept no extra 
cost unless pursuant to a formal modification of the Contract. 

 
SECTION 32.  RESPONSIBILITY FOR WORK 

 

The Contractor assumes full responsibility for the Work until Final Acceptance. The Contractor shall be responsible 
for damage to or destruction of the Work caused by the negligence of the Contractor, or any other party under the 
control and supervision of the Contractor. The Contractor agrees to make no Claims against the County for damages 
for the Work from any cause except negligence or willful acts of the County, improper or faulty design, acts of 
any foreign or domestic enemy, or acts of war. Contractor shall obtain and maintain in force until County’s 
Final Acceptance of Project, Builders’ Risk Insurance that fully covers any loss or damage to Project. 

 
SECTION 33. CHANGES IN THE WORK 

 

The County may make changes in the Drawings and Specifications or scheduling of the Contract within the general 
scope at any time. If such changes add to or deduct from the Contractor’s cost of the Work, the Contract price shall 
be adjusted accordingly. All such Work shall be executed under the conditions of the original Contract except that 
any Claim for extension of time caused thereby shall be included as part of the negotiated Change Order. 

 
SECTION 34.  EXTENSION OF TIME 

 

A. Extension of time stipulated in the Contract for completion of the Work will be made when formally 
approved changes in the Work increase the overall scope; when the Work is suspended; or when the 
Work of the Contractor is delayed on account of physical conditions or acts of others which could not 
have been foreseen by, or which were beyond the control of the Contractor, its Subcontractors, and 
which were not the result of its fault or negligence. 



Contract with General Terms and Conditions 

 

 

 
B. NO TIME EXTENSION WILL BE GRANTED BY THE COUNTY UNLESS THE 

FOLLOWING PROCESS IS FOLLOWED. If, during any month the Contractor is unable to 
Work for reasons beyond its control and believes it is due an extension, it shall submit in writing, along 
with its monthly request for progress payments, a request for the extension which clearly explains 
the circumstances which it feels justifies an extension. The request will be reviewed by the County 
and a written response, granted or rejecting the request, will be issued. Any request for days older than 
the current month will be dismissed without consideration. Time extensions shall constitute a formal 
change to the Contract terms and conditions and shall be issued accordingly. 

 

SECTION 35.   SUSPENSION OF WORK 
 

The County may at any time suspend the Work, or any part thereof, by giving ten (10) Days’ notice to the Contractor 
in writing. The Work shall be resumed by the Contractor within ten (10) Days after the date fixed in the written notice 
from the County to the Contractor to do so. The County shall reimburse the Contractor for expenses incurred as a result 
of such Suspension. 

 
SECTION 36. TERMINATION 

 

 
A. Termination for Convenience 

 

The County may at any time, and for any reason terminate this Contract by written notice to the 
Contractor specifying the termination date, which shall be not less than thirty (30) Days from the date 
such notice is mailed. Notice shall be given to the Contractor by certified mail/return receipt requested 
at the address set forth in Contractor’s Bid Proposal. 

 
In the event of such termination, the Contractor shall be paid such amount as shall compensate the 
Contractor for the Work satisfactorily completed and accepted by the County at the time of termination. 
If the County terminates this Contract, Contractor shall withdraw its personnel and Equipment, cease 
performance of any further Work under this Contract, and turn over to the County any Work completed 
or in process for which payment has been made. 

 
B. Termination with Cause/Default – Cancellation 

 

If the Contractor for any reason or through any cause shall be in d e f a u l t  of the terms of this Contract, 
the County may give Contractor written notice of such default by certified mail/return receipt requested 
at the address set forth in Contractor’s Bid Proposal. 

 
Unless otherwise provided, the Contractor shall have ten (10) Days from the date such notice is mailed 
in which to cure the default. Upon failure of the Contractor to cure the default, the County immediately 
may cancel and terminate this Contract as of the mailing date of the default notice. 

 
Upon termination, the Contractor shall withdraw its personnel and Equipment, cease performance of 
any further Work under the Contract, and turn over to the County any Work in process for which payment 
has been made. 

 
In the event of violations of law, safety, or health standards and regulations, this Contract immediately 
may be cancelled and terminated by the County and provisions herein with respect to opportunity to 
cure default shall not be applicable. 

 
SECTION 37.  REMOVAL OF EQUIPMENT 

 

In the case of termination of this Contract before completion for cause, the Contractor, if notified to do so by the 
County, promptly shall remove any part or all of its Equipment and supplies from the property, failing which the 
County shall have the right to remove such Equipment and supplies at the expense of the Contractor. 



Contract with General Terms and Conditions 

 

 

 
SECTION 38.   PAYMENTS WITHHELD PRIOR TO FINAL ACCEPTANCE OF WORK 

 

As a result of discovered evidence, the County may withhold or nullify the whole or part of any certificate of 
payment to such extent as may be necessary to protect itself from loss caused by: 

 
A. Defective Work not remedied. 

 
B. Claims filed or reasonable evidence indicating probable filing of Claims by other parties against the 

Contractor. 
 

C. Failure of the Contractor of making payments properly to Subcontractors or for Material or labor; or 
 

D. Damage to another Contractor. 
 

SECTION 39.  CORRECTION OF WORK BEFORE FINAL PAYMENT 
 

The Contractor promptly shall remove from the premises all Materials and Work condemned by the County 
Administrator as failing to meet Contract requirements, regardless of whether incorporated in the Work, and the 
Contractor promptly shall replace Materials and/or re-execute Work in accordance with the Contract and without 
expense to the County and shall bear the expense of making good all Work of other Contractors destroyed or damaged 
by such removal or replacement. 
 

All removal and replacement Work shall be done at the Contractor’s expense. If the Contractor does not take action 
to remove such condemned Work and Materials within ten (10) Days after written notice, the County may remove them 
and store the Material at the expense of the Contractor. If the Contractor does not pay the expense of such removal 
and storage within ten (10) Days’ time thereafter, the County may, upon ten (10) Days’ written notice, sell such 
 
Materials at auction or at private sale and shall pay to the Contractor any net proceeds thereof, after deducting all the 
costs and expenses that should have been borne by the Contractor. 

 
SECTION 40.  CLEANING UP 

 

The Contractor shall remove at its own expense from the Work site and from all public and private property all 
temporary storage Structures, rubbish, and waste Materials resulting from its operations. This requirement shall not 
apply to property used for permanent disposal of rubbish or waste Materials in accordance with permission for such 
disposal granted to the Contractor by the County Administrator where such disposal is in accordance with local 
ordinances. 

 
SECTION 41. ACCEPTANCE AND FINAL PAYMENT 

 

A. Upon receipt of written notice that the Work is substantially completed or ready for final inspection 
and acceptance, the Building Inspector, County Administrator, and School Board Superintendent 
promptly will make such inspection; and when he finds the Work acceptable under the Contract and 
the Contract fully performed or substantially completed, he promptly shall issue a certificate, over 
his own signature, stating that the Work required by this Contract has been completed or 
substantially completed and is accepted by him under the terms and conditions thereof, and the 
entire balance found to be due the Contractor, including the retained percentage, less a retention 
based on the estimate of the fair value of the Claims against the Contractor and the cost of completing 
the incomplete or unsatisfactory items of Work with specified amounts for each incomplete or 
defective item or Work, is due and payable.  The date of Substantial Completion of a Project or 
specified area of a Project is the date when the construction is sufficiently completed in accordance 
with the Contract as modified by any Change Orders agreed to by the Parties so that the County 
may occupy the Project or specified area of the Project for the use for which it is intended. 

 
 



Contract with General Terms and Conditions 

 

 

 
B. The making and acceptance of the final payment shall constitute a waiver of all Claims by the 

County, other than those arising from unsettled Claims or from faulty Work appearing within the 
guarantee period provided in the Special Conditions, from the requirements of the Drawings and 
Specifications, or from manufacturer’s guarantees. It also shall constitute a waiver of all Claims 
by the Contractor, except those previously made and still unsettled. 

 
SECTION 42.  HOLD HARMLESS-INDEMNIFICATION 

 

It is understood and agreed that Contractor hereby assumes the entire responsibility and liability for any and all 
damages to persons or property caused by or resulting from or arising out of any act or omission on the part of 
Contractor, its Subcontractors, agents or employees under or in connection with this Contract or the performance or 
failure to perform any Work required by this Contract. Contractor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the County and 
its agents, volunteers, servants, employees, and officials from and against any and all Claims, losses, or expenses, 
including reasonable attorney’s fees and litigation expenses suffered by any indemnified party or entity as the 
result of Claims or suits due to, arising out of or in connection with (a) any and all such damages, real or alleged, (b) 
the violation of any law applicable to this Contract, and (c) the performance of the Work by Contractor or those 
for whom Contractor legally is liable. Upon the County’s written demand, Contractor shall assume and defend 
at Contractor’s sole expense any and all such suits or defense of Claims made against the County, its agents, 
volunteers, servants, employees, or officials. 

 
SECTION 43. INSURANCE 

 

Contractor always agrees to secure and maintain in full force and effect  during the term of this Contract, the following 
policies of insurance: 

 
A. Workers’ Compensation Insurance as required under Virginia Code Title 65.2. 

 
B. Comprehensive General Liability Insurance, including Contractual liability and products and completed 

operations liability coverages, in an amount not less than One Million and 00/100 Dollars 
 

($1,000,000.00) combined single limits (CSL). Such insurance shall name the County of Russell as an 
additional insured by policy endorsement. 

 
C. Automobile Liability Insurance including coverage for non-owned and hired vehicles in an amount not 

less than One Million and 00/100 Dollars ($1,000,000.00) combined single limits (CSL). 
 

D. Umbrella/Excess Liability Insurance at limits not less than One Million and 00/100 Dollars 
($1,000,000.00). 

 
Contractor shall submit to the County Administrator certificates of insurance with endorsement to the policy 
attached, prior to beginning Work under this Contract and no later than ten (10) Days after Award of the Contract. 

 
All policies of insurance required herein shall be written by insurance companies licensed to conduct the business of 
insurance in the State, and acceptable to the County, and shall carry the provision that the insurance will not be cancelled 
or materially modified by Contractor without thirty (30) Days prior written notice to the County. 

 
The Contractor’s insurance shall be used primary and the County’s primary coverage shall not be used to satisfy 
any Claims. 

 
IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR TO IMMEDIATELY NOTIFY THE COUNTY 
SHOULD ANY POLICY BE CANCELLED. FAILURE TO NOTIFY THE COUNTY SHALL CONSTITUTE A 
MATERIAL BREACH OF THE CONTRACT. 
 
The certificates of insurance shall list the County of Russell, 137 Highland Drive, Lebanon, VA 24266, as the 
additional insured for the Project. The endorsement to the policy would be that which is attached to the Contractor’s 



Contract with General Terms and Conditions 

 

 

 
liability policy that acknowledges the County as an additional insured on all policies the County requires to be 
endorsed. This shall be either a direct endorsement that names the County or a blanket endorsement that the Contract 
states that the County will be named as an additional insured on the insurance policy. 

 
 

 



Contract and General Terms and Conditions 

 

 

 
 

[SIGNATURES APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 



Contract and General Terms and Conditions 

 

 

 

SIGNATURE OF PARTIES 
 

As evidence of this Contract to the preceding terms and conditions set forth herein, the Parties affix their authorized 
signatures hereto: 

 

 
ATTEST: 

 Ken Construction Company, Inc.  

  

By:    
Corporate Secretary/Authorized Agent Signature of Corporate Officer 

 
Its:    

Title 
 
 
 

ATTEST: 

 
COUNTY OF RUSSELL, VIRGINIA 

 

By:    
County Clerk Chairman, Russell County Board of Supervisors 

 
 

Approved as to form and legal sufficiency 
 
 

 

County Attorney 
 

Date:    
 
 

STATE OF VIRGINA  
COUNTY/COUNTY OF RUSSELL, to-wit: 

 
The foregoing Contract was acknowledged before me this day of  , 2020, by________________
 [name of officer to sign], ________________________ [title], of ________________________ 
[name of company], a ________________________ Company/Corporation on its behalf.  His/her is known to me 
personally or produced as identification. 

 
 

 

 
My Commission expires:     

Notary Public 

 

Registration No.:     
 
 
 
 

























































 

 

 

Status Report: March-April 2020 
 

March 12, 2020 

In reference to Property Belonging to Gene Couch located on Memorial Drive> Contact was made 
with Mr. Couch he was advised of the county ordinance. A copy of the ordinance was given to 
the property owner as well as a written notice served by me for noncompliance with County 
Code. 

April 20, 2020  

Inspected the Property on Memorial Drive, little to no progress has been made by the 
landowner. I spoke with Mr. Couch via phone and advised him that if the property is not in 
compliance that he will be held accountable. 

March 12, 2020 

In reference to the Property at 151 Straight Hollow Rd, I made contact with the property owner. 
She was advised of the County Ordinance and her property was not int compliance. The owner 
advised that she would get her sons to get it cleaned up. A written notice was served on the 
property owner. 

April 12, 2020  

I returned to 151 Straight Hollow Rd to inspect the property. The owners had made significant 
progress and were actively working on cleaning it up while I was on scene.  

I advised the property owner that I would be back to inspect the property at a later date to see if 
the property is in compliance. 

 

 

 

RUSSELL COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE 
 

P.O. Box 338                                                                             Phone (276) 889-8033 
79 Rogers Avenue 
Lebanon, VA 24266              sheriff@russellcountyva.us           Fax: (276) 889-8203 

 
                                                        Steve Dye, Sheriff 
 



March 24, 2020 

In reference to the property at 16 Starnes Drive, I made contact with property owner and advised 
him of the County Litter Ordinance and that his property was not in compliance. He advised me 
that he would get cleaned up as soon as possible. A written notice was served on the property 
owner. 

April 12, 2020 

I returned to in inspect the property at 16 Starnes Drive. Upon inspection the homeowner was in 
compliance with the County Litter Ordinance. 

 

April 27, 2020 

While off duty I was taking my garbage off at the Moccasin Valley Rd trash site, I observed an 
individual on the concrete ramp, and he appeared to be digging in the dumpster. I got out of my 
vehicle and walked up to the individual that he wasn’t supposed to be digging in the trash. I then 
observed two male subjects inside the dumpster.  I advised all three mail subjects to get out of 
the dumpster and displayed my badge of authority and advised them of the county litter 
ordinance. I took down all three  individuals names and information and advised them if I caught 
the back up here, they would be issued a summons. 

 

Deputy C Porter 

Russell County Sheriff Office 

 


	Public Hearing.pdf
	Meeting: 5/4/20     6:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	Authorization - Minutes BOS.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):

	Authorization - Expenditures.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):

	Presentations - Attorney.pdf
	Meeting: 5/4/20        6:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	Skanska_Russell County_Owner Letter Agreement_Courthouse Reno Expansion.pdf
	Attachment A - Scope of Services for Consulting Services_Russell County
	Attachment B - Compensation Terms_Russell County
	Attachment C - Terms and Conditions for Consulting Services_Russell County
	Attachment D - Russell County RFP-002 Project Manager Services
	RUSSELL COUNTY, VIRGINIA
	REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP)
	1.0 PURPOSE
	2.0 SCOPE OF SERVICES
	3.0 CONTACT PERSON(S)
	4.0 PROPOSAL ISSUING AND CLOSING
	5.0 PROPOSAL SUBMISSION
	6.0 GENERAL CONDITIONS
	NOTICE:
	7.0 CONTRACT TERM AND CONDITIONS

	8.0 INSURANCE
	9.0 PAYMENT TERMS
	10.0 COOPERATIVE PROCUREMENT
	11.0 PROPOSAL CONTENT
	12.0 PROPOSAL SELECTION PROCESS
	13.0 PROPOSAL EVALUATIONS


	Skanska_Russell County_Owner Letter Agreement for Services_Courthouse

	Reports1.pdf
	Meeting: 5/4/20         6:00 PM
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):
	ATTACHMENTS:

	Lebanon Elementary School Wall Repair Contract.pdf
	INVITATION FOR BID PREPARED BY:
	SECTION 1.  SCOPE OF WORK
	SECTION 2. TIME OF COMPLETION
	SECTION 3.  CONSIDERATION / PROVISION OF SSN OR FIN
	SECTION 4.  CHANGE IN SCOPE OF WORK
	SECTION 5.  SCHEDULE OF PAYMENT
	SECTION 6. OBLIGATION TO SUBCONTRACTOR
	SECTION 7. COMPLIANCE WITH ALL LAWS/FOREIGN AND DOMESTIC BUSINESSES -
	AUTHORITY TO TRANSACT BUSINESS IN THE STATE AND COMPLIANCE WITH
	FEDERAL IMMIGRATION LAW
	SECTION 8. APPLICABLE LAW / VENUE
	SECTION 9. NONDISCRIMINATION
	SECTION 10.  DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE PROVISIONS
	SECTION 11. NON-ASSIGNMENT CLAUSE
	SECTION 12.  ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATION
	SECTION 13. FAITH BASED NON-DISCRIMINATION
	SECTION 14. FORMAL CORRESPONDENCE / REPRESENTATIVES AND NOTICES
	SECTION 15.  ENTIRE AGREEMENT AND MODIFICATIONS
	SECTION 16.  CORRELATION OF DOCUMENTS
	SECTION 17.  ACCESS TO WORK SITE
	SECTION 18.   WORK SITE CONDITIONS/DISCREPANCIES
	SECTION 19.  CHANGED CONDITIONS
	SECTION 20.  MATERIAL AND APPLIANCES
	SECTION 21.   PERMITS, UTILITY FEES, AND BUSINESS LICENSE
	SECTION 22.  ROYALTIES AND PATENTS
	SECTION 23. SUPERINTENDENCE
	SECTION 24. EMPLOYEES
	SECTION 25.  APPLICABLE FEDERAL, STATE, AND LOCAL RESPONSIBILITIES
	SECTION 26.   PROTECTION OF THE PUBLIC AND OF WORK AND PROPERTY
	SECTION 27.   EMERGENCY WORK
	SECTION 28.   SUBCONTRACTS
	SECTION 29.   ORDER OF COMPLETION
	SECTION 30.   SEPARATE CONTRACTS
	SECTION 31.  COUNTY STAFF STATUS
	SECTION 32.  RESPONSIBILITY FOR WORK
	SECTION 33. CHANGES IN THE WORK
	SECTION 34.  EXTENSION OF TIME
	SECTION 35.   SUSPENSION OF WORK
	SECTION 36. TERMINATION
	SECTION 37.  REMOVAL OF EQUIPMENT
	SECTION 38.   PAYMENTS WITHHELD PRIOR TO FINAL ACCEPTANCE OF WORK
	SECTION 39.  CORRECTION OF WORK BEFORE FINAL PAYMENT
	SECTION 40.  CLEANING UP
	SECTION 41. ACCEPTANCE AND FINAL PAYMENT
	SECTION 42.  HOLD HARMLESS-INDEMNIFICATION
	SECTION 43. INSURANCE

	SIGNATURE OF PARTIES
	COUNTY OF RUSSELL, VIRGINIA



